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Corporate Profile
RREN

MOBI Development Co,, Ltd. (the “"Company") was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands as an exempted company with limited liability on 16 December 2002. The
shares of the Company were listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "Stock Exchange™) on |7 December 2009 (Stock Code: 947).

We operate through our subsidiaries MOBI Antenna Technologies (Shenzhen) Co.,
Ltd. ("MOBI Shenzhen”), MOBI Telecommunications Technologies (Ji An) Co., Ltd.
("MOBI Jian"), MOBI Technologies (Xi An) Co., Ltd. (*"MOBI Xian") and MOBI
Technology (Hong Kong) Limited (“MOBI HK").

We are one of the few one-stop providers of wireless communication antennas and
base station Radio Frequency (“RF”) subsystems in China. Our business consists of
the design, manufacture, marketing and sale of antennas, base station RF subsystem
and solutions that are the required components of mobile communication coverage
systems, including, wireless access systems (WiFi and PHS), 2G (GSM and CDMA),
3G (TD-SCDMA, CDMA 2000, W-CDMA and WiMax), satellite communication and
microwave transmission networks. We sell our products to network operators in
China and overseas directly for deployment into the networks they are constructing
and operating. We also sell our products to some of the world's leading wireless
network solution providers who incorporate our products into their wireless
coverage solutions, such as their proprietary base stations, which they then sell to

network operators worldwide.

We are committed to providing quality and sophisticated products and building long

term relationships with our customers.
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Corporate Information
NRER

REGISTERED OFFICE
PO. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman, KY |-1104, Cayman Islands

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN THE PRC

7 Langshan First Road, Science and Technology Park, Nanshan District, Shenzhen,

Guangdong Province, PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
Room 1902, Mass Mutual Tower, 38 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Hu Xiang (Chairman)

Wang Guoying

Non-executive Directors
Qu Degian

Lai Yongxiang

Yan Andrew Y.

Yang Dong

Independent non-executive Directors
Li Tianshu
Zhang Han

Bao Fan

COMPANY SECRETARY
Lau Wing

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
Hu Xiang
Lau Wing

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Zhang Han (Chairman)
Li Tianshu

Bao Fan
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Li Tianshu (Chairman)

Zhang Han

Bao Fan

Qu Degian

Yan Andrew Y.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Hu Xiang (Chairman)

Li Tianshu

Zhang Han

Bao Fan

Yang Dong

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai,

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKER
China Merchants Bank
[/F, Wenhua Building, Shennan Road East, Shenzhen, China

AUDITORS
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

Certified Public Accountants

WEBSITE ADDRESS

http://www.mobi-antenna.com

CONTACT INFORMATION FOR INVESTOR RELATIONS
Telephone: 86-755-86 186100 (ext 1317) Miss Zhao Luyang

Email: ir@mobi-antenna.com

STOCK CODE
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited: 947
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Financial Highlights
B HE

Analysis of revenue by business type

RER DI BEHBRADH Analysis of revenue by customer type
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KEY FINANCIAL FIGURES

(All amounts are expressed in RMB' million unless otherwise stated)

Financial Highlights

FEMBRE

(BREHRAN FEEBONARKBET

MBEHE

£51)

2011 2010

2011 F 2010 F

Revenue WA 798.1 1,041.4
Gross profit EH 212.1 255.0
Profit before taxation IR b 52.9 99.0
Net profit attributable to shareholders PR B A5 4B R 42.4 84.|
Total assets BmEE 1,668.7 16973
Net current assets TBEE TR 803.9 837.6
Net assets attributable to shareholders PR B EEF 5 1,067.6 1,037.9
Inventories turnover days FEREXEY 198 145
AR turnover days N AR R B R B 318 216
AJP turnover days JE T R FUB R 321 247
Current ratio BN L & 2.34 2.28
Gearing ERBELE 2.7% 0%
No. of issued shares, million shares BETERMHHBE (BER) 798.5 797.1
Net assets value per share, RMB shEEFE (ARET) 1.34 1.30
Basic EPS, RMB cents BREARRAN (ARES) 5.31 10.56
Return on average equity FHRARE & 3.96% 8.60%
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Chairman’s Statement
FERES j

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,

On behalf of the board of directors of MOBI Development Co., Ltd. (the
“"Company”), | am pleased to present to the shareholders the business development
of the Company and its subsidiaries (the "Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2011 (the “Year").

Year 201 | was an extraordinary year. Global economy was unstable with greater
volatility in the China market and European market. Nevertheless, the Group
managed to overcome difficulties and achieved not only continuous increase in
global market share, but also significant breakthrough in products with high-end
technologies such as multi-frequencies and multi-systems as well as LTE in the
Western European and North American mainstream markets, laying the foundation

for our future business growth.

OPERATING RESULTS

The Group's operating revenue for 2011 amounted to RMB798.1 million,
representing a year-on-year decrease of 23.3%, while net profit decreased by 49.6%
to approximately RMB42.36 million over last year. Basic earnings per share was

approximately RMB0.05.
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As at the end of the Year, the balance of cash and bank deposits of the Group was

approximately RMB300. 1 million.

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT

In 2011, The Group faced various challenges in the global mobile market and
economic and financial environment. During the year, operators in the PRC further
slowed down purchase of equipment for base stations and reduced the capital
expenditure for base station network construction. Besides, with great volatility in
European markets, orders from European customers reduced significantly as
compared with last year. Against the backdrop of industrial trends and competition,
the Group deepened its cooperation with world-leading customers by capitalizing
on its customer and technological advantages, further increasing its shares in the
international market. More importantly, in 201 |, the Group entered into framework
purchase agreements with multinational operator customers in Europe for the first
time pursuant to which the Group will become one of the world's few suppliers of
antenna products in the next three years. Meanwhile, as the Group's products with
FDD-LTE technology passed the tests of North American customers, the Group has
become the only Chinese supplier for the project. Moreover, the Group's products
have involved in large scale networking in Japan's network construction for the first

time.

Furthermore, the Group devoted to continuous expansion of market shares among
domestic operators and enhanced cooperation with domestic system equipment
manufacturers through its one-stop product and technology solution. The Group
won the biggest share in the tender for purchase of base station antenna of China

Unicom and TD-SCDMA antenna of China Mobile in 201 I,

The Group is one of the world's leading manufacturers of products with TD-LTE RF
technology. In the TD-LTE test board of China Mobile in 201 |, the Group involved in
the network construction of most of the cities. Meanwhile, the Group also sold its

TD-LTE products to Japan and other overseas markets in 201 |.

To sum up, the Group is one of the world's few RF technology providers with
leading-edge technologies in both TD-LTE and FDD-LTE. With the rapid growth of
wireless Internet applications, the Group believes it will usher in more growth

opportunities in the 4G era.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERETE

DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION

In view of the operating results of 2011, and taking account of the overall financial
condition, cash flow and future growth of the Group, the board of directors of the
Company recommends the payment of a cash dividend of HK$0.02 per ordinary
share at the end of the year. To thank our shareholders for their continuous support,

it is also proposed to pay a special cash dividend of HK$0.01 per ordinary share.

FUTURE PROSPECTS
Looking forward, the Group will focus on domestic market and international market

simultaneously.

Under the influence of industrial competition and global economic crisis, worldwide
customers are paying more attention on costs, technologies and qualities. At the
same time, world well-known customers are having more stringent and longer
certifying process on suppliers. The Group has established profound business
relationships with numerous world well-known customers, which were further
strengthened and has resulted in increasing brand recognition of the Group in 201 1.
We will focus on establishing a more comprehensive product range and technical
support, including the provision of one-stop solution for antenna systems and RF
subsystems with multi-frequencies and multi-systems, with more competitive costs,

in order to further expand our business scale with customers worldwide.

Besides, emerging market has a comparatively low level of network penetration and
coverage. In 201 [, the Group recorded a significant increase in products sold,
directly or through its equipment provider customers, ultimately to emerging market,
such as Indonesia and Vietnam. The Group will focus on expanding major emerging

markets, including Asia-Pacific, Latin America, Middle East and Africa.

As it is expected, domestic 3G network construction will usher in new growth
opportunities in 2012, while the demand for global 4G technology will keep growing.
The Group will strengthen and expand its leading position in technologies of 3G and
4G products, and seize the opportunity of significant industrial development for a

satisfactory growth of result.

8 MOBI Development Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2011
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I would like to express my sincere gratitude to our shareholders and customers for
their kind support and trust, and to our Directors and staff for their diligent work.
The Company and the Board will continue to optimise the customer base and
structure, adapt strategies of product differentiation based on technology and costs
to enhance the integrated competitiveness and ensure the stable growth of the
operating results of the Group. The Company strives to become a top class global
provider of radio frequency technology for mobile communication in order to

maximise the returns to its shareholders and the society.

Hu Xiang

Chairman and chief executive officer

Shenzhen, PRC
22 March 2012
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BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

Compared with last year, revenue decreased by approximately RMB243.4 million, or
approximately 23.4% in 2011 to RMB798.1 million (2010: RMBI,041.4 million).

Sales of antenna system decreased by 28.8% to approximately RMB248 million
(2010: RMB348.4 million) whilst sales of base station RF subsystem and sales of
products of coverage extension solution decreased by approximately 16.2% and
39.9% to RMB472.2 million (2010: RMB563.5 million) and RMB77.88 million (2010:
RMB129.5 million), respectively.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Antenna system

In 2011, PRC network operators deferred and carried out their network building in
a slower pace than last year. Some PRC network operators did not proceed with
procurement tender due to the postponement of network building. In addition,
affected by the economy and communication competition in Europe, purchasing
demand from some international equipment manufacturer customers dropped
drastically. However, the Company recorded a significant growth in sales to some
other international customers, which partly offset the unfavourable result led by the

PRC and European markets.

The Company’s multi-frequency multi-system antenna grew by approximately 8%
over last year with a slight decrease of 4% for WCDMA antenna. This was due to
the growth of demand from overseas customers. Purchases by domestic network
operators in the PRC were subject to fluctuations over the past years with greater
fluctuations in the second half year than in the first half year However, in 201 [, the
publication of the result of the centralized procurement tender by China Unicom
was postponed to November 201 | and had not been published by China Mobile up
to the end of December 201 |. Affected by these, demand from the domestic
market in 201 | dropped substantially due to the postponement of building plans by

PRC network operators.

Base station RF subsystem

Because of the deferral of procurement by PRC network operators as well as the
associated influence to a network solution provider customer in the year, our
revenue from base station RF subsystems in 201 | declined by approximately |6.2%

to approximately RMB472.2 million.

Affected by the restructuring of the business of Nokia Siemens Networks, revenue
from it declined substantially by approximately 50.3% to RMBI26 million. However,
revenue from Alcatel-Lucent increased sharply by 44.9% to RMB178 million. Affected
by the PRC market, revenue from domestic equipment manufacturer customers
decreased by approximately 18.7% to RMB257 million. Meanwhile, bulk sales of the
Group's RF subsystems were first made to customers in North America and some
LTE products passed the tests conducted by customers and orders were received.
The Group believes these LTE products will be used in LTE network building in
North America and Japan. The Group believes a diversified customer base and the
development of high-end products will help increase the performance growth and

profitability of the Group's RF subsystem products.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEN R D

Coverage extension solution

Affected by the postponement of network building by domestic operators, revenue
from the Company’s coverage extension solutions also declined by approximately
39.9% to approximately RMB77.88 million in 201 . Revenue from aesthetic antenna
declined by approximately 7% to RMB31.43 million. Revenue from electric cables,
indoor antenna and other products decreased by approximately 49.3% to RMB46.46

million.

Customers

As discussed above, the significant deferral of procurement by PRC network
operators resulted in a reduction of revenue from them. Revenue generated from
PRC network operators, namely China Mobile Communication Corporation, China
United Telecommunications Corporation and China Telecommunications
Corporation, was totalling approximately RMBI66.9 million as compared to
RMB302.6 million in 2010.

Affected by the PRC market, revenue from ZTE Corporation (“ZTE") also dropped
by approximately 18.7% to RMB257 million. This decrease was substantially lower
than the decline in demand from PRC network operators because its overseas

business development offset its weak domestic market demand.

12 MOBI Development Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2011

BERMLF

RENEEHHEERRERYE 2011FEALD
ABEELHARNBUATRDK39.9%ZEAR
17,7888 ERELRERPDTREA
R¥3,1438 T € - ERAGRECER
B #149.3% E4,6468 T

P

mEXE@  PREKREERSRBEREL
B BEREBRFZMATE - REPEBE
BEBTEBYREEERR  PEBAESL
BEEEERAFARTHEEFREATMNKA

HNARK1.669ET - M2010FRARE

BIETT

o>

w

0

N

AREFRETSYE  REFEBARNER
AEl([hEBA] OBATIRD18.7%HNEA
RME257(8T - E—RBBEEERPEEKE
EENTRAE  REREBNEBRREHN
BAMEERRX



Management Discussion and Analysis

Our commitment to providing quality and sophisticated products and building long
term relationships with our customers contributed to the fruitful growth of our
revenue from a wide range of international customers. Despite a sharp decline in
revenue from Nokia Siemens Networks due to the restructuring of its business,
revenue from Alcatel-Lucent and other customers increased by 44.9% and 50.4% to
RMB178 million and RMB70.41 million, respectively.

The deployment of our products by our diversified international customers into
their network systems strengthened the worldwide awareness of the brand name of
MOBI.

Gross profit

In 2011, we recorded an approximately 16.8% decrease of gross profit to
approximately RMB212.1 million (2010: RMB 255 million) and gross profit margin
was increased from 24.5% in 2010 to 26.6% in this year. It was primarily due to
reduced domestic market demand and the increased percentage of demand from
the international market, resulting in an increase in revenue from products with
higher profit margins of the Group such as multi-frequency multi-system products
and WCDMA products. Meanwhile, the Group stepped up its efforts in integrating
upstream industrial chains, which also helped reduce the procurement costs and

increase the gross profit margin.

The gross profit margin of antenna products of the Company was 28.1%, basically
approximating that in 2010. The gross profit margin of RF subsystem products
rebounded from 23.0% to 24.5%. And because of the increased percentage of the
sales of aesthetic antenna with a high gross profit margin, the gross profit margin of

coverage extension increased from 13.8% to 37.8%.

Other income

Other income increased to approximately RMBI14.23 million. It was attributable to
the increased bank interest income arising from the net proceeds from the listing of
the Company's share on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (“IPO™) completed in

December 2009 as well as increased government grant.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEN R D

Distribution and selling expenses

Distribution and selling expenses increased from approximately RMB47.53 million in
2010 to approximately RMB55.04 million in 201 1. It was primarily due to the
increase of staff cost as a result of increased average headcount for business
expansion. The Company underwent the restructuring of its organizational structure
in 201 1. The aesthetic antenna division was transferred to the market system to
better meet the needs of operator customers, which also led to an increase in

distribution and selling expenses.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses decreased slightly by 0.2% from approximately RMB80.9 |
million in 2010 to approximately RMB80.78 million in 201 |. This was attributed to
increased administrative expenses as a result of the reinforcement of cost
management by the Company; business growth led to the increase of headcount,
wage rate and related statutory obligations; and increased depreciation charge and
maintenance expenses, which were offset by a substantial decline in exchange loss,

business and office expenditure.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

TTIn] 1
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Research and development costs

During the year, the Group recognised approximately RMBI0.39 million
development cost as intangible assets. After the capitalization, research and
development costs increased from approximately RMB37.1 million in 2010 to
approximately RMB37.6 million in 201 I. It was mainly attributable to the increased
material costs and testing fees for development projects tailor-made for customers

and increased depreciation charge arising from new equipment.

Finance costs

Although the bank borrowing interest rate was lifted in PRC, the Group reduced its
bank borrowing to save finance costs. As a result, finance costs decreased
substantially from approximately RMB3.5 million in 2010 to approximately
RMB60,000 in 201 1.
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Profit before taxation

Profit before taxation decreased by approximately 46.5% to approximately RMB53
million (2010: RMB99 million). Net profit margin before tax charge reduced from
approximately 9.5% in 2010 to 6.6% in 201 I.

Income tax expenses

Income tax expenses reduced from approximately RMBI14.9 million in 2010 to
RMB10.54 million in 201 1. Effective tax rates calculated from the tax charged to the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income over the profit before tax were

approximately 19.9% and 15.0% for 201 | and 2010, respectively.

Profit for the year

Profit for the year 201 | decreased by approximately 49.6% to RMB42.36 million
(2010: RMB84.1 million). Our net profit margin was approximately 5.3% in 201 I,
compared to 8.1% in 2010.To conclude, decrease in our net profit margin was due
to a decrease in the Group's revenue level caused by the deferral of network
building by PRC operators and the fluctuations in operations of European

customers.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FUTURE PROSPECTS

Prospects

Looking forward, the Group will pay synchronized attention to the domestic and
international market and continue to focus on RF technology for wireless
communication, especially on base station RF technology and RF technology of other

wireless communications.

Customers

Aiming to become a leading provider of RF technology for mobile communications,
the Group will strive to offer its RF solution to internationally renowned network

solution providers and network operators.

The Group is one of the few providers offering RF solutions to both wireless
network solution providers and network operators worldwide. In 2011, our sales to
these overseas customers increased considerably. And in 201 |, the Group entered
into a framework procurement agreement with a leading network operator, making
the Group one of its three providers for the procurement of antenna on a global
scale over the next three years, which further enhanced the recognition of our
brandname. In addition, the Group has received orders for LTE products and
projects for the development of various new products have been established. We
believe that our presence in international market will grow continuously with the

support of a more comprehensive products and technology portfolio.

Moreover, as the network penetration in emerging markets remained low, the
products sold by the Group and through wireless network solution providers
customers to emerging markets, such as Indonesia and Vietnam, also increased
significantly in 2010. With the increasing demand for telecommunications and the
development of 3G network, the Group will keep focus on the rapid growth in
emerging markets, including Asia-Pacific Region, Latin America, Middle East and

Africa, and provide customers with one-stop solutions of base station RF technology.
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According to the domestic and international experience in establishing network, the
3G network establishment in the PRC is expected to last for several years.
Continuous development of 3G terminals and increasing data application will drive
the growth of 3G network establishment in the PRC. In addition, in view of the
demand for network capacity expansion due to the increasing data flow in 2G
network, the Group believes that the capital expenditure of domestic operators will
grow again in the future, which in return will increase the demand for the antenna
and coverage extension products of the Group from domestic operators as well as

the demand of RF subsystem products from network solution providers.

In addition, the Group has comprehensive channel and technological advantages in
the TD-LTE technology cooperation with international and domestic equipment
manufacturer customers. These enabled the Group to participate in more than half
the pilot cities in the TD-LTE testing by China Mobile in 201 1.The Group believe
during the 4G construction period, the Group will have the opportunity to derive

considerable returns.

Products

In 2011, we continued to invest in research and development and further upgraded
our product technology capacity by establishing a world-class laboratory for testing

of antenna directional pattern.

For antenna system products, the Group achieved remarkable progress in expanding
the markets of overseas network operators and wireless network solution providers
in addition to further consolidating the leading position in the domestic operator
market in 201 |.Various antenna products of the Group passed certification tests of

international wireless network solution providers customers, including base station

1 8 MOBI Development Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2011
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Management Discussion and Analysis

antenna which passed the tests of European network operators with the entering
into of global framework procurement agreements. Our ability to provide products
and solutions for international customers was significantly enhanced. We have
emerged as a leading domestic provider of various antenna with multi-frequencies
and multi-systems which have been deployed in networks for various overseas

projects.

In respect of RF subsystem products, both of our CDMA and LTE RF subsystem
products passed certification tests and secured orders from the North American
customers in 201 1. In addition, with the launch of various RF subsystem products
with multi-frequencies, the demand of 3G, 4G and RF subsystem products with
multi-frequencies are expected to increase substantially. The Group has achieved a
breakthrough in the development of its ceramic loading filter technology, which has
significantly enhanced the function of filter after miniaturization. The Group also
provides tower RF subsystem solutions to network operator customers, such as
tower amplifiers. One-stop tower mounted solutions integrating antenna system

products and other products are also provided to customers.

As far as TD-LTE is concerned, the Group is one of the technology providers with
leading TD-LTE antenna and RF subsystem product technologies in the world. The
Group not only participated in pilot tests carried out in most cities by China Mobile
in 201 | but also closely cooperates with the majority of leading system equipment
manufacturer customers in the world. The Group believes by providing professional
TD-LTE technology support to these customers, the Group will be able to
consistently maintain the industry-leading level in its TD-LTE technology and benefit

considerably from the building of 4G networks.

In respect of coverage extension products, the optimisation and improvement of 3G
network construction will stimulate the demand of base station antenna and base
station RF subsystem as well as boosting the demand for aesthetic antenna, in-door

antenna and relevant technology services.

Conclusion

The Group is one of the few one-stop solution providers of RF technology for
global network operators and network solution providers in the PRC. The Group
has a wide range of well known customers and diversified income sources, which

contributes to the positive and stable growth of the Group.
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The Company and the Board will continue to optimise the customer base and
structure, adopt strategies of product differentiation based on the technology and
costs, maximise the market opportunities in 3G, LTE and the new generation
wireless technology. The Group will also strive to enhance its integrated
competitiveness to ensure the stable growth of the operating results of the Group

and to maximise the returns to its shareholders and the society.
CAPITAL STRUCTURE, LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

We have funded our operations and capital requirements from cash generated from
our operations, trade credit from our suppliers and short-term bank borrowings.
Our primary uses of cash have been for our increased working capital requirements,
capital expenditures on purchases of production equipment and acquisition of land

use rights for our real properties in Shenzhen, Jian and Xian in the PRC.

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had net current assets of approximately
RMB802.7 million (2010: RMB837.6 million) including inventories of approximately
RMB326.9 million (2010: RMB307.9 million), trade and notes receivable of
approximately RMB689.9 million (2010: RMB698.7 million) and trade and notes
payable of approximately RMB444.1 million (2010: RMB585.6 million).
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The Group maintained an effective management of its working capital. For the year
ended 31 December 2011, average inventories turnover, average receivables
turnover and average payables turnover are approximately 198 days (2010: 145
days), 318 days (2010: 216 days) and 321 days (2010: 247 days) respectively. We
offer credit terms generally accepted in the antenna and base station RF subsystems
manufacturing industry to our trade customers. In general, the average credit period
for local network operators is longer than global network operators and solution

providers.

As at 3| December 2011, the Group recorded a pledged bank balances of
approximately RMB5.74 million (2010: RMBI3 million), cash and bank balances of
approximately RMB300.1 million (2010: RMB437.8 million) and recorded bank
borrowings of approximately RMB45.21 million (2010: Nil). The current ratio
(current assets divided by current liabilities) increased to approximately 2.34 times
as at 31 December 201 from 2.28 times as at 31 December 2010. The gearing
ratio (bank borrowings divided by total assets) was 2.7% as compared with a gearing
ratio of approximately 0% as at 31 December 2010. The interest rates on the
Group’s bank borrowings are designated in both fixed rate and floating basis at

prevailing market rates.

The Board is of the opinion that the Group has a solid and stable financial position
and adequate resources to support the necessary operating funding requirement

and foreseeable capital expenditure.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

RMB is the functional currency of the Group. Currencies other than RMB expose
the Group to foreign currency risk. We have foreign currency sales and purchases
and certain trade receivables and bank balances of ours are denominated in USD,
Euro and HKD. We currently do not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
However, the management monitors and will consider hedging of foreign currency

exposure when the need arises.
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After the listing of the Company's shares on the Stock Exchange, significant portion
of our bank balances are denominated in HKD. The Board currently considers that
the appreciation of RMB should have an unfavourable impact on the Group’s
financial results. The management carried out various measures to limit foreign
exchange exposure. As at 3| December 2011, HKD equivalent of approximately

RMB2.06 million was kept in our bank balances.
APPLICATION OF NET GLOBAL OFFERING PROCEEDS

In December 2009 and January 2010, the Group issued a total of 193,958,000
shares (including 18,443,000 shares issued upon the exercise of over-allocation
option). The offer price was HK$3.38 per share and the net proceeds from the IPO
were approximately equivalent to RMB550 million after deduction of related
expenses. As at 31 December 201 |, the Company has already applied approximately
RMB278 million in accordance with the description of the use of proceeds in the

prospectus of the Company dated 4 December 2009 (the “Prospectus”):

—  Approximately RMB65 million, RMB38 million, RMB39 million were applied in
our office and plants in Shenzhen, Jian and Xian, respectively, for the purchase
of equipment, construction and development of production lines and factories

buildings;

—  Approximately RMB8| million was applied to finance our research and

development efforts in Shenzhen, Jian and Xian;
—  Approximately RMB55 million was applied as general working capital of the
Group.

The balance of the net proceeds will be also applied in line with the description in

the Prospectus.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had approximately 2,197 staff. The total staff
costs amounted to approximately RMB146 million for the year ended 201 1. The
remuneration of the Group's employees is determined on the basis of their
responsibilities and industry practices. Regular training is provided to improve the
skills and expertise of relevant staff. The Group also grants share options and

discretionary bonuses to eligible staff based on their performance.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2011, bank balances of approximately RMB5.74 million were
pledged to bank to secure the banking facilities provided to the Group.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2011, the Group did not have any significant contingent

liabilities.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY

As of 31 December 2011, a total amount of 134,000 shares of the Company had
been repurchased at prices ranging from HK$0.80 per share to HK$0.85 per share
by the Company via the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange™).
The Company had subsequently cancelled all the shares repurchased as of 3|
December 201 1. Save as mentioned above, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries had purchased or sold any of the Company's listed securities during the

current year.

DIVIDEND

To share the fruitful results of the Group among all the shareholders, the Board
recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.02 per share and a special
dividend of HK$0.01 per share out of distributable reserve of the Company in
respect of the year ended 31 December 201 1. The proposed final dividend and
special dividend will be paid in or before July 2012 following approval at the

forthcoming annual general meeting (the “"AGM").
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of determining shareholders who are entitled to attend and vote at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to be held on Friday, 25
May 2012 (*2012 AGM"), the Register of Members of the Company will be closed
from Wednesday, 23 May 2012 to Friday, 25 May 2012, both days inclusive. In order
to qualify for attending and voting at the 2012 AGM, all transfer documents should
be lodged for registration with the Company’s share registrar, Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17/F, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 22 May
2012.

For the purpose of determining shareholders who qualify for the final dividend and
the special dividend, the Register of Members of the Company will be closed from
Thursday, 31 May 2012 to Monday, 4 June 2012, both days inclusive. In order to
qualify for the final dividend and the special dividend, all transfer documents should
be lodged for registration with the Company’s share registrar, Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops [712-1716, 17/F, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 30
May 2012.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board has been adamant in upholding high standards of corporate governance
to maximize the operational efficiency, corporate values and shareholder returns of
the Company. The Company adopted sound governance and disclosure practices
and continued to upgrade internal control system, strengthen risk control

management and reinforce the corporate governance structure.

Save for the deviation disclosed in this report, the Company has complied with the
code provisions of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code”)
and the rules on the Corporate Governance Report (the "CG Rules”) as set out
respectively in Appendices 14 and 23 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) during the year ended 3|
December 201 1.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers (the "Model Code") as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

All Directors have confirmed, following specific enquiry by the Company, that they
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code during the year
ended 3| December 201 1.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board Composition

The Board comprises nine Directors, including two executive Directors, four non-
executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors. The following

sets out the composition of the Board, by category of Directors:
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TEERWSE

Executive Directors:
Hu Xiang (Chairman)
Wang Guoying

Non-executive Directors:
Qu Degian

Lai Yongxiang

Yan Andrew Y.

Yang Dong

Independent non-executive Directors:
Li Tianshu
Zhang Han

Bao Fan
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The Board's composition demonstrates a balance of core competence with regard
to the business of the Group so as to provide effective leadership and the required
expertise to the Group. The executive Directors and senior management have
extensive management experience in the wireless communication antennas and base
station RF subsystems industry. The biographical details and experience of the

Directors and senior management are set out on pages 38 to 47 of this report.

There are no financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationships

among members of the Board.

Board Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Group and is entrusted
with the responsibility to supervise the overall management of the business,
including establishing and overseeing the Group's strategic development, business
plans, financial objectives, capital investment proposals and assumes the
responsibilities of corporate governance of the Group. The Board has delegated the
authority and responsibility for implementing its business strategies and managing
the daily operations of the Group's businesses to the executive Directors and

members of senior management of the Group.

Board Meetings

The Board conducts meetings on a regular basis and on an ad hoc basis, as
warranted by business needs. During the year ended 31 December 201 I, four Board
meetings, three audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) meetings and three
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) meetings were
convened. Details of attendance of Board meetings of each of the members of the

Board are set out in “Attendance of Individual Directors at Meetings” below.

Notices for regular Board meetings are given to each Director at least 14 days prior
to the meeting, whereby the Directors can put forward his proposed items into the
agenda. The agenda and the relevant Board papers are then circulated to the
Directors not less than 3 days before a Board meeting in order to enable the
Directors to make an informed decisions. For other Board meetings, reasonable

notices are given.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Board at all times met the
requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors with one of them possessing appropriate

professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence from each of
the independent non-executive Directors. The Company is of the view that all the
independent non-executive Directors meet the guidelines for assessing
independence as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers them to be

independent.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

As at the date of this report, Hu Xiang is both the chairman of the Board and chief
executive officer of the Company, responsible for the leadership and effective
running of the Board to formulate overall strategies and business development
directions for the Group and for the daily management of the business of the
Group, implementation of the policies, business objectives and plans set by the

Board and is accountable to the Board for the overall operation of the Group.

Code Provision A.2.1

This code provision stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief executive officer
should be separate and should not be performed by the same individual. Currently,
Mr. Hu Xiang is both the Chairman and chief executive officer of the Company. Mr.

Hu is one of the founders of the Group and has extensive experience in the
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telecommunication industry. Given the current stage of development of our Group,
the Board believes that vesting the two roles in the same person provides our
Company with strong and consistent leadership and facilitates the implementation
and execution of our Group's business strategies. We shall nevertheless review the

structure from time to time in light of the prevailing circumstances.

Non-Executive Directors

The term of appointment of all the non-executive and independent non-executive
Directors of the Company is three years. Under the Company's Articles of
Association, one-third of all Directors (whether executive or non-executive) is
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at each annual general meeting
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at least once every

three years.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The Board established the Remuneration Committee with specific written terms of
reference which deal clearly with its authority and responsibilities. The Remuneration
Committee comprises all the independent non-executive Directors, namely Li
Tianshu, Zhang Han and Bao Fan and two non-executive Directors, namely Qu

Degian and Yan Andrew Y. The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Li Tianshu.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for assisting the Board in achieving its
objective of attracting and retaining Directors and senior management of the highest
caliber and experience needed to develop the Group's business successfully. The
Remuneration Committee is also responsible for the development of a fair and
transparent procedure in determining the remuneration policies for the Directors
and senior management of the Company and for determining their remuneration

packages. The principal functions of the Remuneration Committee include:
»  formulation of remuneration policy for approval by the Board;

*  recommendation to the Board the policy and structure for the remuneration

of Directors and senior management;

. determination of the remuneration of executive Directors and senior

management, including benefits in kind and compensation payments;
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*  review and approval of the compensation arrangements in connection with
any loss or termination of their office or appointment, or dismissal or removal

for misconduct to executive Directors and senior management; and
*  determination of the criteria for assessing employee performance.
No Director is involved in deciding his own remuneration.

During the year ended 3| December 2011, the Remuneration Committee held
three meetings to review the Company's remuneration policies, the terms of the
service contracts and the performance of all executive Directors and senior
management. Details of attendance of Remuneration Committee meeting of each of
the members of the Remuneration Committee are set out in “Attendance of

Individual Directors at Meetings” below.

Details of the emoluments of each Director, on a named basis, are set out in note

|2 to the financial statements.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Board established the Nomination Committee with specific written terms of
reference which deal clearly with its authority and responsibilities on 22 March 2012.
The Nomination Committee comprises three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Li Tianshu, Zhang Han and Bao Fan, one non-executive Director; namely Yang
Dong and one executive Director, namely. Hu Xiang. The Nomination Committee is
chaired by Hu Xiang. Currently all new appointments to the Board will be

considered by the Board whose deliberations are based on the following criteria:

*  possession of core competencies, including but not limited to financial literacy,
that are appropriate to the Company's business and complement the skills and

competencies of the existing Directors on the Board;

*  ability to commit time and effort to carry out duties and responsibilities

effectively; and

*  possession of a good track record of experience at a senior level in

corporations/organizations.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board established the Audit Committee with specific written terms of reference
which deal clearly with its authority and responsibilities. The Audit Committee
comprises all the independent non-executive Directors. Zhang Han is the chairman

of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee serves as a focal point for communication between the
Directors, the external auditors and chief financial officer as regards their duties
relating to, among other things, financial and other reporting, internal controls and
external audits and to assist the Board in fulfilling its responsibilities by providing

independent view and supervision of financial reporting.

The Board is of the opinion that the members of the Audit Committee have
sufficient accounting and financial management expertise or experience to discharge

their duties. The principal functions of the Audit Committee include:

*  to make recommendations on the appointment, reappointment and removal of
external auditor and to approve the remuneration and terms of such

appointments;
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¢ to review and monitor the external auditor's independence and objectivity;

*  to develop and implement policies on the engagement of external auditor for

non-audit services;

*  to monitor the integrity of the financial statements, annual and interim reports
and the auditor’s report to ensure that the information presents a true and

balanced assessment of the Group’s financial position;
*  to review the Group’s financial and accounting policies and practices;

*  to ensure the management has fulfilled its duty to maintain an effective internal

control system; and

*  to review the external auditor's management letter and any questions raised

by the auditor to the management and the management's response.

Three meetings were held by the Audit Committee during the year ended 3|
December 201 |. The Audit Committee reviewed, together with the management
and the external auditors, the consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 201 |, the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group
and statutory compliance. In addition to reviewing the Group's internal control
system, the Audit Committee also reviewed the independence of the external
auditors and approved the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external
auditors. Details of attendance of Audit Committee meetings of each of the
members of the Audit Committee are set out in “Attendance of Individual Directors

at Meetings" below.
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ATTENDANCE OF INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS AT MEETINGS RESHESEER

The CG Code stipulates that the board should meet regularly for at least 4 times a rEERTURTESEATHRTER -

year at approximately quarterly intervals. The attendance of individual Directors at FEDAR - NBFE—R - HE2011F128
LE5E REFHLFEFS FHEES

GREESRBAABERTX

meetings of the Board, the Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee 31

H
during the year ended 31 December 201 |, respectively, is set forth in the table &S

below:
Meetings attended/Meetings held
HESRER BTNER
Remuneration Audit
Board Committee Committee
Name of Director BEEfS EEE FMZzES ERZEE
Hu Xiang Eik 4/4 N/A N/A
TNEmA TNEmA
Wang Guoying FE®E 4/4 N/A N/A
T TEA
Qu Degjan EiE% 3/4 3/3 N/A
TNEA
Xing Qibin (Note 1) TEM (FEE1) /1 N/A N/A
TNEm TNEm
Lai Yongxiang (Note 2) FEoxm (fIEE2) 3/3 N/A N/A
TEA TNEA
Yan Andrew Y. akod 3/4 3/3 N/A
TERA
Yang Dong FE 3/4 N/A N/A
ki ki
Li Tianshu FREF 3/4 313 33
Zhang Han R 3/4 313 3/3
Bao Fan BR 2/4 23 23
Notes:
P 5 -

(I Resigned as a non-executive director on 22 July 201 1.

RZE-——F+t AT ZAEEFNTES -

(2) Appointed as a non-executive director on 3 August 201 |.

RZB——FN\A-REZEFRNTES -
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SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE AND EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company (“Articles”), without

prejudice to and in addition to complying with the applicable requirements set forth

in the Listing Rules and other applicable laws and regulations, the Company has since

|7 December 2009, the date on which its shares are listed on the Stock Exchange

adopted a stringent system to avoid potential conflict of interests respecting

transactions (“‘Relevant Transactions”) in which any Directors are interested in, and

transactions with any of our connected persons (as defined under the Listing Rules)

or any company in which the controlling shareholder (as defined under the Listing

Rules) of the Company or its shareholders, individually or collectively, owns a direct

or indirect equity interest of 10% or above (including transactions with ZTE

Corporation, Shenzhen Kang Cheng Shebei Co., Ltd., Shenzhen Zhongxingxindi

Tongxin Qicai Co,, Ltd,, and Shenzhen Shenglongfeng Industrial Co., Ltd.) (“Relevant

Companies”), as follows:

(1

34

Any Relevant Transactions be approved by way of a resolution passed by a
majority of the non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors, provided that any non-executive Director or independent non-
executive Director interested in the transactions in question will declare his or

her interest and will abstain from voting on such matters;

Any Director has a conflict of interest will not participate or be involved in

matters relating to the Relevant Transactions;

An executive committee (the “Executive Committee”) comprising the chief
financial officer and the deputy financial officer of the Company has been
established to monitor, review and manage all Relevant Transactions, and to
prepare semi-annual report in relation to the execution of the Relevant
Transactions (“Semi-annual Report”) for the supervisory committee’s (the

“Supervisory Committee”) review;

The Supervisory Committee comprising three independent non-executive
Directors (each of whom shall not have any interest in any transaction under
consideration by the Supervisory Committee and shall not be in a position of

conflict of interest when acting in such capacity) has been set up, among other
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things, to supervise the Executive Committee, review and approve the terms
and conditions of continuing connected transactions and Relevant Transactions,
devise and review rules and guidelines for the Executive Committee to follow,
review Semi-annual Report from the Executive Committee, report its findings
to the Board and give recommendations to the Board to ensure that the
Relevant Transactions will be entered into in the interest of the Company and

its shareholders as a whole; and

(5) The Board will disclose the decisions, findings and recommendations on the
transactions reviewed by the Executive Committee and the Supervisory

Committee in the Company’s interim and annual reports.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, two meetings were held by the
Supervisory Committee to review the report on Relevant Transactions in respect of
the sales and purchase entered into by the Group with the Relevant Companies
pepared by the Executive Committee. As reported by the Supervisory Committee,
(i) it had reviewed and approved the master agreements entered into by the Group
and the Relevant Companies and considered the terms and conditions therein were
fair and reasonable; (ii) it had reviewed the supplier procurement bidding documents
and internal procurement procedures of the Group; (iii) it had devised and reviewed
rules and guidelines for Executive Committee and the Executive Committee had
followed accordingly; and (iv) it had reviewed the report submitted by the Executive
Committee. The Supervisory Committee considered Relevant Transactions
conducted during the review period were in line with the respective master
agreements and the internal procedures of the Group, were on fair and normal
commercial terms and there was no other matter that needs to be brought to the

attention of the Board and shareholders of the Company.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, Certified Public Accountants (“Deloitte”), the external
auditors of the Company, were responsible for providing services in connection with

the audit of the financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
201 1.

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the total remuneration in respect of audit
services provided by Deloitte for the Group amounted to approximately RMBI.6

million.

The Audit Committee recommended to the Board (which endorsed the view) that,
subject to shareholders' approval at the forthcoming AGM, Deloitte be re-appointed
as the external auditors of the Company for 2012.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board aims at presenting a comprehensive, balanced and understandable
assessment of the Group’s performance, position and prospects. Management
provides such explanation and information to enable the Board to make an

informed assessment of the matters put before the Board for approval.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the financial
statements of the Group and for ensuring that the financial statements are prepared

in accordance with applicable statutory requirements and accounting standards.

The Group has announced its annual results in a timely manner within the limits of

three months after the end of the financial period, as laid down in the Listing Rules.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining a sound and effective system of
internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness, particularly in respect of the
controls on financial, operational, compliance and risk management, to safeguard

shareholders’ investment and the Group's assets.
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The Board has reviewed and is satisfied with the effectiveness of the Group'’s
internal control system and believes that, such system is sufficient in providing
reasonable assurances that the Group's assets are safeguarded against loss from
unauthorized use or disposition, transactions are properly authorized and proper
accounting records are maintained. The Group has applied an on-going process for
identifying, evaluating and managing the significant risks faced by the Group and this
process includes updating the system of internal controls when there are changes to

business environment or regulatory guidelines.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Group establishes and maintains different communication channels with its
shareholders through the publication of annual and interim reports, information of
the Stock Exchange, a corporate website, and general and investor meetings. The
Group is going to report to its shareholders twice a year and maintains a regular

dialogue with investors.

The annual general meeting provides a useful forum for shareholders to exchange
views with the Board. Separate resolutions are proposed at general meetings on

each substantially separate issue, including the election of Directors.
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Directors and Senior Management
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Hu Xiang, aged 58, is an executive Director, the chairman of the board of Directors
and the chief executive officer of our Company. He is also a director, the chief
executive officer and legal representative of MOBI Shenzhen and MOBI Jian and a
director of MOBI Xian and MOBI HK. Mr. Hu was appointed a Director on 19
December 2002. Mr. Hu was an engineer. Mr. Hu graduated from the Xian
Infrastructure University (now Xian University of Finance and Economics) majoring
in radio communication in August 1981. During the period from 1972 to September
1981, Mr. Hu worked in the hydraulic transmission and control department of the
Northwest Industrial University. Mr. Hu then served as chief of the planning and
supply department at Shenzhen Zhongxingxin Tongxun Shebei Co., Ltd. for the
period from 1992 to 1999. Mr. Hu joined our Group in August 1999. Mr. Hu was a
director of Shenzhen Kang Cheng Jixie Shebei Co., Ltd. from June 2002 to June 2007
and the general manager of Shenzhen Zhongxin Weixiantong Shebei Co., Ltd. from
March 2000 to September 2007. He is a shareholder of Fangyi Collaboration
Holdings Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company.

Wang Guoying, aged 57, is an executive Director, and also a director of MOBI
Shenzhen and MOBI Jian and a director and chief executive officer of MOBI Xian. Mr.
Wang was appointed a Director on |9 December, 2002. He is also the Vice
President in Research and Development of our Company and MOBI Shenzhen. Mr.
Wang is qualified as a senior engineer. In December 1979, Mr. Wang graduated from
Northwest Telecommunications Engineering College (now Xidian University)
majoring in antenna engineering. Mr. Wang has held such positions as assistant
engineer, engineer and senior engineer at the Shijiazhuang Communications Survey
and Control Technology Institute during the period from 1987 to 1999. During this
period, Mr. Wang received a second class award in PRC National Scientific
Technology Advancement, a Model Individual Award for PRC National “Eighth Five-
Year Plan” Scientific Technology Advancement, a second class award and a third class
award respectively in Scientific Technology Advancement of the Ministry of Machine
Building and Electronics Industry. Mr. Wang was a director of Shenzhen Kang Cheng
Jixie Shebei Co., Ltd. from June 2002 to June 2007. Mr. Wang joined our Group in
August 1999.
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Directors and Senior Management

Non-executive Directors

Qu Degian, aged 49, is a non-executive Director, and a director of MOBI Shenzhen,
MOBI Jian and MOBI Xian. Mr. Qu was appointed a Director on |9 December 2002.
Mr. Qu graduated from Shaanxi Institute of Finance and Economics (now School of
Economics and Finance of Xian Jiaotong University) in June 1992 and he further
obtained the qualification as an accountant in the PRC in October 1994. From June
1993 to April 2003, Mr. Qu was the chief of ZTE Corporation’s accounting and
auditing centre and the deputy chief of its financial centre. In April 2003, Mr. Qu was
appointed as the deputy general manager of Zhongxin Shenzhen Weixiantong
Shebei Co., Ltd. and since September 2007, has been the general manager of
Zhongxin Shenzhen Weixiantong Shebei Co., Ltd.. Mr. Qu joined our Group in
December 2002. He is a shareholder of Fangyi Collaboration Holdings Limited, a

substantial shareholder of the Company.

Lai Yongxiang, aged 49, is a non-executive Director, and a director of MOBI
Shenzhen, MOBI Xian and MOBI Jian respectively. Mr. Lai graduated from the
National University of Defense Technology ( BIBT BHEZ R £ ) in 1989 with a Master's
degree in signal processing. From 1989 to 2000, Mr. Lai served as deputy general
manager of Shenzhen Zhongxing Semiconductor Co,, Ltd (B EEEFR A 7)),
engaging in product sales and marketing management. Between 2000 and 2005, Mr.
Lai was deputy general manager of ZTE Corporation, engaging in handset
production supply chain integration and handset marketing management. Since 2005,
Mr. Lai has been serving for ZTE Corporation, responsible for the jobs including the
process optimization of handset system. Mr. Lai has precious experience in the use
of communication technology, the integration of communication system and the
marketing management of communication products. Mr. Lai joined our Group in

August 201 1.
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Yan Andrew Y., aged 54, is a non-executive Director, and a director of MOBI
Shenzhen, MOBI Jian, MOBI Xian and MOBI HK. Mr.Yan was appointed a Director on
2 January 2003. He received a bachelor's degree in engineering from Nanjing
Aeronautic Institute in 1982 and a master of art's degree in International Political
Economy from Princeton University in the United States in 1989. Mr Yan was the
founder of and has been the managing partner of SAIF Advisors Limited, an
investment advisor to SAIF Management Il Limited. Currently, Mr. Yan is an
independent non-executive director of Fosun International Limited (stock code:
0656) and China Resources Land Limited (stock code: 1109); a non executive
director of Digital China Holdings Limited (stock code: 0861), China Huiyuan Juice
Group Limited (stock code: 1886) , NVC Lighting Holding Limited (stock code:
22272) and eSun Holdings Limited (stock code: 00571), all of which are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr.Yan is also an independent director of Giant
Interactive Group Inc., (listed on the New York Stock Exchange with stock code:
GA); a director of Acorn International Inc. (listed on the New York Exchange with
stock code: ATV) , ATA Inc. (listed on Nasdaqg with stock code: ATAI) and Shenzhen
Eternal Asia Supply Chain Management Ltd. (listed on the Small and Medium
Enterprise Board of the Shenzhen Stock Exchange with stock code: 002183). He
was a Director of China Digital TV Holding Co. Ltd. (listed on the New York Stock
Exchange with stock code: STV) from May 2004 to September 2008; an
independent Non-executive Director of China Oilfield Services Limited (listed on
the Stock Exchange with stock code: 02883) from September 2002 to June 2009; an
independent director of Eastern Communications Co., Ltd (listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange with stock code: 600776.5S) from June 2003 to February 2006; an
Independent Non-executive Director of Stone Group Holdings Limited from June
2001 to November 2009, the shares of which were withdrawn from listing on the
Stock Exchange in November 2009 and a director of Global Education & Technology
Group Limited from Mar 2007 to Dec 2011, its shares of which were withdrawn
from listing (Nasdaq with stock code: GEDU) in December 201 I. Mr.Yan joined our
Group in January 2003.
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Directors and Senior Management

Yang Dong, aged 40, is a non-executive Director and a director of MOBI Shenzhen,
MOBI Jian and MOBI Xian. Mr.Yang was appointed a Director on | January 2006. Mr.
Yang is a charterholder of the Chartered Financial Analyst designation. Mr. Yang
graduated from Tsinghua University in 1995 with a bachelor degree in computer
science. In 1997, Mr. Yang obtained a master degree in accounting from the
University of Southern California, United States. Mr. Yang has been working for SAIF
Advisors Limited, an investment advisor to SAIF Management Il Limited and is
currently a partner at an affiliate of SAIF Advisors Ltd. Mr.Yang was a director of a
Nasdaq listed company, Perfect World Co,, Ltd. (stock code: PWRD) during the
period from September 2006 to July 2008 and is currently an independent director
of it. Mr.Yang joined our Group in January, 2003.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Li Tianshu, aged 58, is an independent non-executive Director. Mr. Li was appointed
a Director on | July 2007. Mr. Li graduated from Xi'an Jiaotong University in 1976
majoring in computational Mathematics. From 1985 to 1988, Mr. Li studied business
economics at Universitat Mannheim in Germany and pursued a doctoral degree at
Universitat Mannheim in 1988. From 1988 to 1995, Mr. Li worked as a research
assistant in the business economics department of Universitat Mannheim. During the
period from March 1995 to September 1995, Mr. Li worked in Germany for Friatec
Aktiengesellschaft, an international manufacturing enterprise, and was designated to
become the future managing director for China. From 1995 to 1998, Mr. Li first
worked for KSB Aktiengesellschaft, an international machinery manufacturing
enterprise, as the assistant to the chairman of the management board of KSB and
then became the chief representative of its Beijing Representative Office. During the
period from 1998 to 2002, Mr. Li took the position of regional director of Messer, an
international chemical manufacturing enterprise, responsible for its business
development in Northern China as well as the operation, sales and profits of its
joint ventures and wholly owned companies in the Northern China region. During
that period, Mr. Li also served as the general manager of Messer North China
Industrial Gas Co,, Ltd. and the chairman to the board of Tianjin Messer Gas System
Co., Ltd. Since 2002, Mr. Li has been the general manager of Beijing Delintech
Technology Co., Ltd., a technical promotion service provider and sales service
provider. Since 27 March 2011, Mr. Li has been the general manager of Beijing Zhong
Biao Fang Yuan Anti-counterferting Technology Co. Ltd. Mr. Li has valuable
experience in international corporate management and enterprise resources

planning (ERP). Mr. Li joined our Group in July 2007.
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Zhang Han, aged 48, is an independent non-executive Director appointed on 25
November 2009 and the chairman of the audit committee. Mr. Zhang is currently an
independent director of Perfect World Co., Ltd. (stock code: PWRD), a Nasdaq
listed company, where Mr. Zhang has also served as a member of its audit
committee since July 2008. The responsibilities of such role include overseeing the
accounting and financial reporting processes as well as external and internal audit of
the Company. Mr. Zhang received his bachelor's degree in chemistry from the Peking
University in 1985. He later obtained an EMBA degree from the China Europe
International Business School in 2004. From 1985 to 1988, Mr. Zhang worked at
Beijing Fiber Reinforced Plastic Research & Design Institute. Mr. Zhang was the
Manager in the securities department of Shenzhen Shekou China Merchants Co.,
Ltd. from 1989 to 1994. Mr. Zhang was the deputy manager at the finance
department of China National Technical Import & Export Corporation, and also the
general manager of Shanghai CNTIC Investment Advisory Co., Ltd. from 1994 to
1998. From 1999 to 2000, Mr. Zhang served as assistant to the general manager,
investment director and fund manager at Penghua Fund Management Co,, Ltd. a
fund management company in China. Mr. Zhang served as the deputy general
manager of Rongtong Fund Management Co,, Ltd., a fund management company in
China, from 2001 to 2003. Mr. Zhang also served as the general manager of Great
Wall Fund Management Co., Ltd., a fund management company in China, from 2004
to 2005. Mr. Zhang is currently a partner of Share Capital Partners Ltd., a Chinese
venture capital firm. Mr. Zhang has built up his experience in conducting due
diligence work in respect of the financial performance, management and corporate
government quality of various companies and conducting financial analysis of listed
companies throughout his various tenures in the investment industry. Mr. Zhang

joined our Group on 25 November 2009.

Bao Fan, aged 41, is an independent non-executive Director appointed on 25
November 2009. Mr. Bao obtained a master's degree in Economics from
Handelshgyskolen Bl in 1995. Mr. Bao was the chief strategy officer of Asialnfo
Holdings, Inc., a leading IT service and software company in China, from July 2000 to
March 2004. Mr. Bao is currently chief executive officer of China Renaissance
Partners, an investment bank headquartered in Beijing which he founded in 2004. Mr.

Bao joined our Group on 25 November 2009.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Shao Zhiguo, aged 48, is our vice president in Sales and Marketing, MOBI Shenzhen
and MOBI Jian respectively. Mr. Shao graduated from the Northwest
Telecommunications Engineering College (now Xidian University) with a bachelor
degree in wireless equipment structure design in 1984.In 1998, Mr. Shao obtained a
master degree in systematic engineering from Xi'an Electronic Technology University.
During the period of 1984 to 1999, Mr. Shao has held such positions as engineer
and senior engineer at the Shijiazhuang Communications Survey and Control
Technology Institute. Mr. Shao has over |5 years experience of research and
development in the area of telecommunication measurement and control
technology and has received a second class award in Scientific Technology
Advancement of the Ministry of Machine Building and Electronics Industry. Mr. Shao
is a senior member of the Chinese Institute of Electronics. Mr. Shao was a director of
Kang Cheng from June 2002 to June 2007. Mr. Shao joined our Group in August
1999.

Huang Jianjun, aged 49 is our deputy general manager in Antenna business of the
research and development department of MOBI Shenzhen. Mr. Huang graduated
from Northwest Telecommunication Engineering College (now Xidian University) in
1983 with a bachelor's degree in magnetic field engineering and specializing in
antenna. Mr. Huang worked at Shijiazhuang Communications Survey and Controlling
Technology Research Institute from August 1983 to April 2001, where he was
awarded the qualification as an engineer in October 1992 and as a senior engineer

in fixed wireless systems in 1998. Mr. Huang joined the Group in April 2001,
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Huang Youyuan, aged 59, is our deputy general manager in RF business of the
research and development department of MOBI Shenzhen. Ms. Huang graduated
from Shaanxi Radio and Television University in industrial enterprises management in
1986. Ms. Huang qualified as an accountant in 1993 and as a senior accountant in
1998. Ms. Huang had worked at China Aerospace Times Electronics Corporation
during the period from December 1968 to April 2000 and her last position there

was senior accountant. Ms. Huang joined the Group in March 2001.

Liao Dong, aged 41, is our deputy general manager in Sales and Marketing of MOBI
Shenzhen. Mr. Liao graduated from Chongging University with a doctoral degree in
mechanical manufacturing and its automation in 1999. Mr. Liao had worked at ZTE
Kangxun Telecom Co., Ltd. during the period from July 1999 to February 2001 and
at ZTE Corporation president’ office during the period from February 2001 to
March 2003. Mr. Liao joined the Group in March 2003.

Han Jianrong, aged 51, is our deputy general manager in Production of MOBI
Shenzhen, MOBI Jian and MOBI Xian. Mr. Han graduated from Northwestern
Polytechnical University with a bachelor degree in foundry engineering in 1982. Mr.
Han has over 20 years of experience in production. Mr. Han was appointed as an
engineer at Xi'an Aerospace Engine Corporation and No.771 institute of China
Aerospace Corporation in 1989 and 1993 respectively, and was awarded his
professional qualification as senior engineer by China Aerospace Corporation in

1997. Mr. Han joined the Group in February 2000.
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Kong Weitong, aged 48, is our deputy general manager of Internal Operations of
MOBI Shenzhen. Mr. Kong obtained a bachelor's degree in economics from Shaanxi
Institute of Finance and Economics (now School of Economics and Finance of Xian
Jiaotong University) in August 1998. Mr. Kong worked at the China Aerospace
Corporation from 1982 to 2002 in the areas of accounting and audit, where he was
appointed as an accountant in 1992 and as a senior accountant in 1999. Mr. Kong
became a non-practicing member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public

Accountants in 2006. Mr. Kong joined the Group in May 2002.

Chen Zhaojun, aged 35, is the chief financial officer of the Company and MOBI
Shenzhen, and is responsible for the financial management of MOBI Jian and MOBI
Xian. Mr. Chen obtained a bachelor's degree in economics from Xiamen University
in July 1999, and later obtained a master's degree in economics from Xiamen
University in July 2002. Mr. Chen worked as Senior Project Manager in the
Investment Department of ZTE Corporation from 2003 to 2004. Mr. Chen has been
a Certified Public Accountant in the PRC since 2006. Mr. Chen joined the Group in
July 2004.
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COMPANY SECRETARY AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Lau Wing, aged 39, is our deputy financial officer; authorized representative and
company secretary. He is also the deputy financial officer of financial centre of MOBI
Shenzhen. He is responsible for our company secretarial, financial and accounting
management and internal audit affairs. Mr. Lau obtained a bachelor's degree in
accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 1996, and later obtained
a master’s degree in business administration (financial service) in 2005. He is a
Certified Public Accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. Mr. Lau has 16 years of experience in finance, accounting , auditing and
company secretarial matters. Mr. Lau had held senior financial positions in several

listed companies. Mr. Lau joined our Group in May 201 1.
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The Directors present their annual report and the audited consolidated financial

statements for the year ended 31 December 201 1.

CORPORATE REORGANISATION
The Company was incorporated with limited liability in the Cayman Islands on 16
December 2002.

The shares of the Company were listed on the Stock Exchange on |7 December

2009.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal activities
of the subsidiaries comprise the research, development, manufacture and sale of
antenna system, base station radio frequency subsystem and products of coverage
extension solution. There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s

principal activities during the year.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 201 and the state of
affairs of the Group at that date are set out in the financial statements on pages 65

to 136.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.02 per share
and a special dividend of HK$0.01 per share to the shareholders whose names

appear on the register of members of the Company on 4 June 2012.
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION MEERHEE
The following is a 5 years summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the TERBAREERAT R AN RFEENEERE
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the Prospectus and the ERAE BERRERRLSERIBRE -

audited financial statements.

Year ended 3| December

BZ12A31BLEE

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
2011 F 2010 2009 F 2008 F 2007 F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTRE ARETET ARETT AR®TRT ARETR

RESULTS E
Revenue WA 798,060 1,041,420 980,222 671,182 626,806
Profit before tax G IENbE 52,899 98,955 126,438 69,477 59,537
Tax IR (10,541) (14,850) (18,968) (7,552) (2,764)
Profit for the year FRH) 42,358 84,105 107,470 61,925 56,773
Profit attributable to RAREA A

owners of the Company JE 15 ) 42,358 84,105 107,470 61,925 56,773

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEEREE

Non-current assets FRBEE 268,133 203819 146,659 135,054 94,789
Current assets mBEE 1,400,567 1,493,501 1,455,184 658,485 547,763
Current liabilities nEEE (596,657) (655,857) (679,392) (463,290) (359,467)
Non-current liabilities FRBAE (4,421) (3,569) (3,499) (2,673) (3236)
Net assets BESFE 1,067,622 1,037,894 918,952 327,576 279,849
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT ¥ BERRE

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group during the FR - ARENE  BERXENZHFES
year are set out in note 15 to the financial statements. R BEREMT15 .
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SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

On I3 January 2010, 18,443,000 over-allotment shares of USD0.000001| each of the
Company at price of HKD3.38 per share were issued pursuant to the underwriting
agreement of the IPO of the Company. Pursuant to a shareholder resolution passed
on | June 2010, a bonus issue of 72,446,099 shares of USD0.00000| each of the
Company is issued to the persons whose names appear on the register of members
of the Company at the close of business on | June 2010 on the basis of one share
for every ten shares held on | June 2010.These new shares rank pari passu with the

existing shares in all aspect.

Details of movements in the Company's share capital and share options during the

year are set out in notes 25 and 26 to the financial statements, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

At 31 December 2011, the Company's reserves available for distribution, calculated
in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands,
amounted to RMB506.7 million. This amount includes the Company's share premium
account of RMB560.4 million at 31 December 2011, which may be distributed
provided that immediately following the date on which the dividend is proposed to
be distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as and when

they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
In the year under review, revenue attributed to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for 90.1% of the total revenue for the year and revenue attributed to the

largest customer accounted for 32.1%.
Purchases from the Group's five largest suppliers for the year is less than 25%.

The Directors’ interests in a major customer and suppliers are set out in the

paragraph headed “Directors’ Interest in Contracts” on page 58 of this report.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:
Executive Directors

Hu Xiang (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Wang Guoying

Non-executive Directors

Qu Degian
Lai Yongxiang
Yan Andrew Y.
Yang Dong

Independent non-executive Directors

Li Tianshu
Zhang Han

Bao Fan

Under the provisions of the Articles, all of the Directors are subject to retirement

by rotation and re-election.

In accordance with Article 130 of the Articles, Mr. Li Tianshu, Mr. Zhang Han and Mr.
Bao Fan, independent non-executive Directors will retire and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the

Company.

In accordance with Article |14 of the Articles, Mr Lai Yongxiang, a non-executive
Director will retire from office and, being eligible have offered themselves for re-

election at the AGM.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive Directors
an annual confirmation pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Board still
considers each of the independent non-executive Directors to be independent from

the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES
Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the senior management of

the Group are set out on pages 38 to 47 of the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACT
Each of the executive Directors and non-executive Directors has entered into a
service agreement with our Company commencing from |7 December 2009 for a

term of three years, respectively.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into a letter of
appointment with our Company for a term of three years commencing from |7
December 2009 (except for Li Tianshu whose engagement with us commenced on

I July 2007) and renewable by mutual agreement on annual basis.

None of the Directors has entered into a service contract with the Company which
is not determinable by the Company within one year without payment of

compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
Directors’ emoluments are reviewed by Remuneration Committee with reference to

Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance and the results of the Group.
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SHARE OPTION BRE
Particulars of the Company's share option scheme are set out in note 26 to the ARRIERETEIFBEH NI B RRM 26 -

financial statements.

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share option scheme TERBREARRBRESZIFANED
during the year:

“Exercise price Outstanding as Exercised Outstanding
per share at beginning during as at end
(RMB) of the year the year of the year
Name Date of grant BRITEE Exercisable period 9 FR FXR
& REAH (AE®) ATEME R AT [SERi:d e R AT
Directors:
s
Hu Xiang 15.1.2003 0.3208 15.1.2004 - 14.1.2013 4,510,000 — 4,510,000
EiE2
Wang Guoying 15.1.2003 0.3208 [5.1.2004 - 14.1.2013 1,925,000 (1,000) 1,924,000
FER
Qu Degian 15.1.2003 0.3208 15.1.2004 - 14.1.2013 660,000 — 660,000
JEiER
Lai Yongxiang 15.1.2003 0.3208 [5.1.2004 - 14.1.2013 1,298,000 — 1,298,000
FE 7K A
Sub-total: 8,393,000 (1,000) 8,392,000
W
54 MOBI Development Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2011



Report of the Directors

EEEHRE
“Exercise price Outstanding as Exercised Outstanding
per share at beginning during as at end
(RMB) of the year the year of the year
Name Date of grant BRITEE Exercisable period F9 FR £X
& RHAH (AE®) A{TEMSE e R AT E BT e R AT 2
Other participants:
HthBEE
Participants 15.1.2003 0.3208 15.1.2004 - 14.1.2013 1,980,000 (400,000) 1,580,000
Participants 31.8.2005 0.6655 31.8.2006 - 30.8.2015 330,000 — 330,000
Sub-total: 2,310,000 — 1,910,000
et
Other employees:
HitfEg
Employees 15.1.2003 0.3208 15.1.2004 - 14.1.2013 1,925,000 (50,000) 1,875,000
E&
Employees 31.8.2005 0.6655 31.8.2006 - 30.8.2015 10,888,500 (932,000) 9,956,500
E&
Sub-total: 12,813,500 — 11,831,500
et
Total: 23,516,500 (1,383,000) 22,133,500
@it :

The weighted average closing share price immediately before the dates on which

the options were exercised was HK$2.26.

*  Upon passing of resolution for the bonus issue by a shareholder resolution on
I June 2010 and pursuant to the 2003 and 2005 stock incentive plans, the
exercise price of the share options granted under these plans and the number
of shares to be allotted and issued upon full exercise of the subscription right
attaching to the outstanding share options were adjusted in accordance with
the terms of the plans and the supplementary guidance attached to the letter
from the Stock Exchange dated 5 September 2005 relating to adjustments to

share options.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2011, the interests and short positions of the Directors, the
chief executive or their associates in the share capital, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or its associated corporation (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “"SFO™)) which were notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests or short positons which they were taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of SFO), or which, as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code™),

were as follows:

Ordinary shares of the Company:

Name of Director Nature of Interest

Number of shares

EZHESRATRAERRS - HEARHG
REFHEZRAE

R2011F12A31H - €5 - SRITHAES
BENBHEARRRAIEBEER (ERR
BHRBE G ([FHRBEE]) EXVED)
IR - HERDREFTHREREES LT
EBRPIEXVBETRFESH BEMERAFR
BRANER AR (BERBEFRBER
PIEEIRARENREIAR) - IREE
FRBERIEIRECFERARAFEDN
FaMrega AR BB EMEITAZE
SETEFRHORETA (MRETA) AR
EANRRBRAHERIARNT -

ARAAEBR

Percentage of the

Company'’s issued capital

EEnE BEME RBBE EARRAERTREANES L
Hu Xiang Personal 25,433,500 3.19%
EiEl fEA Long Position

=9}
Wang Guoying Personal 27,207,400 341%
FTEE fEA Long Position

=9}
Yan Andrew Y. Personal 742,500 0.09%
A fk EA Long Position

=3}
Yang Dong Personal 742,500 0.09%
FR fEA Long Position
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Share options of the Company:

Details of the Directors’ interests in share options of the Company are set out in

the Section headed “Share Options” in this report.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2011, none of the Directors or the
chief executive of the Company had registered any interest or short position in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests or short positions which they were taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of SFO), or which as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

So far as is known to the Directors or Chief Executive of the Company as at 31
December 2011, shareholders (other than Directors or Chief Executives of the
Company who had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO were as

follows:
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Ordinary shares of the Company:

Name of Director

Nature of Interest

Number of shares

Percentage of the

Company’s issued capital

ESEE EENE R EE EARRAERTREANES L
Fangyi Collaboration Beneficial owner 230,607,300 28.88%
Holdings Limited EnfEAA Long position
TAERER AR =)
SB Asia Infrastructure Fund L.P Beneficial owner 168,299,994 21.08%
EnEBA Long position
=9}
SB Asia Pacific Partners L.P Interest of a 168,299,994 21.08%
controlled corporation Long position
2y VNCIE: £ =9}

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

As at 31 December 2011, Directors’ interests in a major customer were as follows:

ZTE Corporation (“"ZTE")

ESRNGNTHNER

BZ201MF 128318 ETEEFHMES

SHTHORRMT

REEARDARAR ([ EABHR])

*  Hu Xiang, Qu Degian and Xing Qibin, Directors of the Company, are members .

of the 39 shareholders (“Beneficial Owners”) of Fangyi Collaboration Holdings

Ltd. (“Fangyi"”), a substantial shareholder of the Company.

*  The Beneficial Owners had an indirect equity interest of approximately 16.6% .

in ZTE, the largest customer of the Group for the year ended 31 December

2011, through their shareholdings in Shenzhen Zhongxin Weixiantong Shebei

Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhen Weixiantong”). Shenzhen Weixiantong owns 49%

shareholding interest in Shenzhen Zhongxingxin Tongxun Shebei Co., Ltd.

("Zhongxingxin”), which in turn had approximately 33.87% shareholding

interest in ZTE.
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*  Hu Xiang, Qu Degian and Lai Yongxiang together held approximately 6.10%
shareholding interests in Shenzhen Weixiantong. Therefore, they have indirect
shareholding interests in ZTE through their shareholding interests in Shenzhen

Weixiantong.

As at 31 December 2011, directors’ interests in major suppliers were as follows:

Shenzhen Kang Cheng Shebei Co., Ltd. (“Kang Cheng")

*  Wang Guoying, Director of the Company, has directly maintained
approximately 12.0% equity interest in Kang Cheng, a supplier accounted for

8.9% purchases of the Group for the year ended 31 December 201 |.

*  The Beneficial Owners have an indirect equity interest in Kang Cheng through
their shareholdings in Shenzhen Weixiantong. Shenzhen Weixiantong was a

15% shareholder of Kang Cheng.

*  Hu Xiang, Qu Degian and Lai Yongxiang as members of the Beneficial Owners,
therefore, have indirect shareholding interests in Kang Cheng through their

shareholding interests in Shenzhen Weixiantong.
Shenzhen Shenglongfeng Industrial Co., Ltd. (“Shenglongfeng™)

*  Hu Xiang and Wang Guoying, Directors of the Company, have directly
maintained approximately 2.0% and 4.4% equity interest in Shenglongfeng, a
supplier accounted for |.6% purchases of the Group for the year ended 3|

December 201 .

*  The Beneficial Owners have an indirect equity interest in Shenglongfeng
through their shareholdings in Shenzhen Weixiantong. Shenzhen Weixiantong
was a 20% shareholder of Shenglongfeng.

*  Hu Xiang, Qu Degian and Lai Yongxiang as members of the Beneficial Owners,
therefore, have indirect shareholding interests in Shenglongfeng through their

shareholding interests in Shenzhen Weixiantong.

Report of the Directors
EEEWE

o WA ERELMEXASASERYIS
FBACN0%HBE - Bt - A E
BRI EEBE N R ROK
1 REEATRBANRE -

BZE201ME12A318  EXEftEEhES
REKHPHERIT

AT EHERREER2 R ([FR))

s FRRATEFTEREZEEEERID
120%8 R RER - BN —RIGAKE
BE20MENRANBLFELRER
8.9% ML &R -

s EGBAABBARRIALENS
o & AR BE o Rl TE
REBHRR - BH15%EE -

o WA ERLNBKA/EDZEAAN
KE BBERNFRIELBORE B
BRBA R AE -

AImBEESEXERAR ([EEL])

o ARAREFHANIEREEERES
BELA2.0% M4 4%NRHE - HT7—FK
EAREBEHZ2011F12A31BILFEL
REBE16%MMLERS -

s EnBAABBARRIALBNS
o BEAGE RESHRE - RIIMT

BREELHRR - HH20%HEE

e WA EREANBKA/ESEAAN
KE  BBERNFRYERBORE H
ERARESOMRE -

BEHREERAT 2011458 59



Report of the Directors
EEEWE

Shenzhen Zhongxingxindi Tongxin Qicai Co., Ltd. (*Zhongxingxindi")

*  The Beneficial Owners have an indirect equity interest in Zhongxingxindi, a
supplier accounted for 1.8% purchases of the Group for the year ended 3|
December 2011, through their shareholdings in Shenzhen Weixiantong.
Shenzhen Weixiantong was a 34.3% shareholder of Zhongxingxindi. Shenzhen
Weixiantong owned 49% shareholding interest in Zhongxingxin, which in turn

had a 70% shareholding interest in Zhongxingxindi.

*  Hu Xiang, Qu Degian and Lai Yongxiang as members of the Beneficial Owners,
therefore, have indirect shareholding interests in Zhongxingxindi through their

shareholding interests in Shenzhen Weixiantong.

Save as disclosed above, no Director had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the year ended 3| December

2011,

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the significant related party transactions entered into by the Group are
set out in note 30 to the financial statements which did not fall under the definition
of “connected transaction” or “continuing connected transaction” under Chapter

[4A of the Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company's articles of
association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company to

offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders of the Company.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this report, the percentage of shares
of the Company in public hands is in compliance with the prescribed level of the

minimum public float as set out in Rule 8.08 of the Listing Rules.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE ENZES

The Company has set up an audit committee with written terms of reference. The AREERUBKEEE  FIFEARE®R
audit committee comprises three independent non-executive Directors and reports CEBREEERE-ABUINTEE N
to the Board of Directors. Ex¢

The Group's consolidated financial statements for the year ended 3| December ERZESCENARBEBZE2011F12A31
2011 have been reviewed by the audit committee of the Company, who are of the AEFENGEMBERE  RARXSREFAE
opinion that such statements comply with the applicable accounting standards and HREHENRERZRENCELRRHKE -

legal requirements, and that adequate disclosures have been made.

AUDITOR 73 4]

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to re-appoint Deloitte BRBRRBFREG LREREER  BEHNEEE
as auditor of the Company. g o WEMR A LRI ARLD AIZEA -

On behalf of the Board REREFE

MOBI Development Co., Ltd. EL#RARDA

Hu Xiang ik

Chairman I

22 March 2012 20124 3H22H
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Deloitte.
=2

TO THE MEMBERS OF MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO,, LTD.

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of MOBI Development Co.,
Ltd. (the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
set out on pages 65 to |36, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 3| December 2011, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies

and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Independent Auditors’ Report

B AR &

HELBRERATRR
(RESBEEEMALAERAF)

AZERD A TR H M) EFRTHRE65
Z16EELERARAA(] ERA)) RE
FREIGHE] BEXRE)MGEMBEERE - It
RERBERRBER2011F12A3NBNES
HERRABRRABZZA L FENGREZEK
nlE  HARREDRRRGEAELSTER
FUARBAGHBRHMER AL o

ESHGEMBBRERENER

BERRESFAREREREGTMAGRME
ERBBREERRBERARINKERE
REBELATHEAMBERE  URERES
REAREE S BERRA L BORIEF - A
EERAMBRR T FEBRRREFRERMN I
M E AR -

EELLERARAR 2011 5%

63



Independent Auditors’ Report
& 3% BN R

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with our agreed terms of engagement and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the

consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated

financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December 201 | and of the Group's profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the

disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong

22 March 2012
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

REEHERBBEERR

For the year ended 31 December 2011
HZ 2011512 A31 BIEFRE

2011 2010
20115 20104
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Pt E ARETR ARBETT
Revenue L'ON 7 798,060 1,041,420
Cost of sales HE R (585,919) (786,435)
Gross profit EH 212,141 254,985
Other income Hp A 8 14,232 12,973
Research and development costs HIREIBWN (37,591) (37,095)
Distribution and selling expenses DHERHEERX (55,041) (47,525)
Administrative expenses THRAX (80,784) (80,912)
Finance costs B AR 9 (58) (3:471)
Profit before taxation 758 11 71 52,899 98,955
Income tax expense PSR X 10 (10,541) (14,850)
Profit and the total comprehensive income ZUNETE ZS DN
for the year attributable to EENEEFER
owners of the Company 2HBALE Il 42,358 84,105
Earnings per share A
— basic (RMB cents) —&EKX (AE%5H) 14 531 10.56
— diluted (RMB cents) — 8% (AR%%5) 14 521 1033

EELLERARAR 2011 5%
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
A B HRE
At 31 December 201 |

R2011 %12 318

2011 2010
20115 20104
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
P &E ARET T ARETTT
Non-current Assets FRBEE

Property, plant and equipment ME - BB RRE I5 203,532 172,048
Deposits for purchase of plant and equipment ~ BEHE RFHEEE RS 24,818 —
Prepaid lease payments AN HEFIE 16 20,239 20,683
Deferred tax assets EENIBE E 17 6,063 5,657
Intangible assets B EE 18 13,481 5431
268,133 203,819

Current Assets mEE E
Inventories 78 19 326,881 307,855
Trade and other receivables B 5 R E A YR 20 764,035 734,337
Tax recoverable EEEE 3,348 —
Prepaid lease payments AN HEFIE 16 453 462
Pledged bank balances EEBRITEH 21 5,738 13,011
Bank balances and cash RITERRBR S 21 300,112 437,836
1,400,567 1,493,501

Current Liabilities REAE
Trade and other payables B 5 K E th FE T BR K 22 539,887 643,382
Dividend payable FEfTIR 2 699 735
Tax payable FEf IR 10,862 10,497
Bank borrowings RITERK 23 45,209 —
Deferred income EEWA 24 — 1,243
596,657 655,857
Net Current Assets M)A EFE 803,910 837,644
Total Assets less Current Liabilities BEERTDEE 1,072,043 1,041,463
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e AR R R R
At 31 December 2011

R2011E12A31 R

2011 2010
2011 20105
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
P E ARBTT ARETT
Non-current Liability FRBEE
Deferred income EEWA 24 4,421 3,569
Net Assets BEFR 1,067,622 1,037,894
Capital and Reserves PR K b
Issued capital BEITRA 25 6 6
Reserves E1 1,067,616 1,037,888
Equity attributable to owners of the Company ~ AR R HEH AEIGHIER 1,067,622 1,037,894

The consolidated financial statements on pages 65 to |36 were approved and

authorised for issue by the board of directors on 22 March 2012 and are signed on

its behalf by:

Hu Xiang
A
DIRECTOR
BES

FOLEI1EMGAVBRRELESTER
20123 A22 B/ ERMEETIZ - WA TE

EREREE

Wang Guoying
IER
DIRECTOR

EX
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year anded 3| December 201 |
HE2011F 12831 BILFRE

Statutory Share
Enterprise surplus option
Issued Share  expansion reserve Special reserve  Retained
capital  premium fund fund reserve  (Note 26) profits Total

BEf Rt G¥BE AEERH BH BREGH &
e & B¢ DEg fife  (Hft2e) EH #;
RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBOOO
ARETL ARETL ARETR ARBTT ARETL ARETR ARETT ARETR

=TT

At I January 2010 R2010F1 818 5 537,636 3,034 16,500 2999 5225 353553 918952
Transfer &3 - - - 8763 - — (8763) -
Bonus issue of shares Erly (1 — — — — — —
Bxercise of over-allotment option  {TF R AL 1E - 54,888 . = . = = 54,888
Transaction costs attributable Ea kS

to issue of shares RBHA — (1,524) — — — — — (1,524)
Exercise of stock options IR RRE - 728 = = = (203) = 525
Profit and the total comprehensive  F & | R

income for the year ELON S - - - - - - 84,105 84,105
Dividends paid ERRE —  (1905) - = - = —  (1905)
At 31 December 2010 ®2010£12A 318 6 572,675 3,034 25,263 29% 5022 428895 1037894
Transfer EH — — — 6,063 — = (6,063) =
Exercise of stock options e R E = 1,072 = = = (339) — 733
Profit and the total comprehensive ~ F & F| R

income for the year 2ENAER - - - - - = 42358 4358
Dividends paid EffRE — (13 — — — — — (13
Shares repurchased (note 25(c) BB (B 25(c) — 91 — — - - — 9
At 31 December 201 | R2011E12A318 6 560,384 3034 31,326 29% 4683 465190 1067622
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations for foreign investment enterprises
in the People's Republic of China (the “PRC"), the Company's PRC subsidiaries are
required to maintain two statutory reserves, being an enterprise expansion fund and
a statutory surplus reserve fund which are non-distributable. Appropriations to such
reserves are made out of net profit after taxation reported in the statutory financial
statements of the PRC subsidiaries while the amounts and allocation basis are
decided by their respective boards of directors annually. The statutory surplus
reserve fund can be used to make up their prior year losses, if any, and can be
applied in conversion into capital by means of capitalisation issue. The enterprise
expansion fund is used for expanding the capital base of the PRC subsidiaries by

means of capitalisation issue.

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands (2009 Revision), the share
premium of the Company may be applied for redemption or purchase of any shares
of the Company, payment of distributions or dividends to shareholders provided
that immediately following the date on which the distribution or dividend is
proposed to be paid, payment of its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business. During 201 | and 2010, dividends, to the extent in excess of the Company’s

retained profits, were funded out of its share premium.

Special reserve represents the difference between the paid-in capital of MOBI
Antenna Technologies (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (“MOBI Shenzhen"), a subsidiary of the
Company, and the nominal value of the Company's shares issued in connection with
the acquisition of MOBI Shenzhen. MOBI Shenzhen was acquired pursuant to the
group restructuring completed on 19 December 2002, at which time the Company
entered into an equity transfer agreement for the acquisition of the entire equity

interest in MOBI Shenzhen.

RERBRSEERR

For the year anded 31 December 201 |

HBE2011F12 831 BILFE

REFEARKME ([FE])HNELEAIEE
ERRERBRE  ARENTEFARAEL
MENADKAEEFRES  BERERES
REEBSBAES - ZERESORTTIET
BfREAEEMBRRAZ Wmﬁ%%ﬁﬂ%
o SEROREESFHEEFSRE -
*%%ﬁ%éﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁii%%@@ﬁﬂu
RABBEAMEBTBRMRA - LEBRA
SABBEABTRERRTETARNE
AREHE -

REREHS DAL (2009FETE) » KAF
HRAGEER ARBERHEE AR HEMRK

7 MBRRXN R REE - ERERERELX
NETNPASE L ST %%H%%W@E¢

TR HOER o B20115 k201056 R -
I SRBARBNREEF - wak@£1%
fif o

BRlRESIERAR T AR ELREREN OF
N ARAR (BRI HEHBRARED
A B E L RN BITROOEENEZE - B
HRYI TR E2002F12 A 198 M E B &
1S - MAARREREFUREEE L FIYIK
2HRAERT - BREEEGE -
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

MERTRBWME

For the year ended 31 December 2011

HE2011 512 A31 BILEE

2011 2010
20115 20105
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETT
Operating activities R RS
Profit before taxation % 5 4 52,899 98,955
Adjustments for: HATHEBELRE
Depreciation and amortisation WEREH 24,616 18,415
Write-down on inventories &M 415 830
Government grants related to assets Eﬁﬁ?*ﬁ BB (1,258) (1,452)
Interest income from bank deposit AFEFHF WA (3,195) (3,689)
Release of prepaid lease payments ﬁﬂ?ﬁﬁf SIE 453 462
Gain on disposals of property, HEWE - BER
plant and equipment REH W ES (19) -
Interest income from structured deposit HEBMTEROFBMA (4,238) —
Allowance for doubtful debts %EE%% 568 —
Finance costs BF T AR 58 3471
Operating cash flows before RetEBEEHA
movements in working capital HNKERERE 70,299 116,992
(Increase) decrease in inventories FE (gm) md (19,441) 6,772
Increase in trade and other receivables ,élf N EL fth 8 5 B R IE A (30,266) (174,871)
(Decrease) increase in trade and other payables SREMERER ORd) Ei (111,633) 105,418
Cash from operations REMRBRE (91,041) 54311
Taxation paid EANEAE (13,930) (15,602)
Net cash (used in) from feEEg (PrA)
operating activities EEREFHE (104,971) 38,709
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GEEEREWREK

For the year ended 31 December 2011

HBE2011F12 831 BILEE

2011 2010
20115 20104
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETT

Investing activities REED
Interest received 2 M A8 7,433 3,689
Government grant related to assets HEERBNBNHBE 867 2,000
Development costs paid BRI ERKAR (9,710) (5,936)
Placement of structured deposit FEEBUEER (1,018,226) —
Withdrawal on structured deposit BB ER 1,018,226 =
Placement of pledged bank balances FECERRITER (363) (11,129)
Withdrawal of pledged bank balances RiIH D R RITAEER 7,636 24,663
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWE BELERE (46,347) (71,738)
Deposits paid for purchase REERE K
of plant and equipment RO RE (24,818) —
Proceeds on disposal of property, HEME  BER
plant and equipment RIEBEVPTIFHRIE 64 107
Net cash used in investing activities REEBMAREFE (65,238) (58,344)
Financing activities RMEED
Proceeds from issue of shares BITRG G IA 733 55413
Transaction cost on issue of shares BITRHD R ZKA = (1,524)
Dividends paid BERERE (13,308) (19,075)
Repurchase of shares B 91) —
New bank loans raised ERITER 92,209 156,265
Repayment of bank borrowings ERERITER (47,000) (283,400)
Interest paid EERENES) (58) (3471)
Net cash from (used in) financing activities mEESESE (FFA) ReFsE 32,485 (95,792)
Decrease in cash and cash equivalents RekReZEEWRD (137,724) (115,427)
Cash and cash equivalents at | January R1A1BNRERREEEY 437,836 553,263

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December

represented by bank balances and cash

R12A8 31 BNRERIREEEY
(BNSR1T R RIRE) 300,112 437,836
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE TSR R MR

For year ended 3| December 201 |
HE20ME12 831 BIEER

72

GENERAL

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in Cayman Island and
its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock
Exchange”) on |7 December 2009. The address of its registered office is
Maples Corporate Services Limited PO. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand
Cayman KY-1104, Cayman Islands and its principal place of business is 7
Langshan First Road Science and Technology Park, Nanshan District, Shenzhen,
Guangdong Province, PRC.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB"),
which is the same as the functional currency of the Company and its principal

subsidiaries.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) is

production and sale of antennas and radio frequency subsystems.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

New and revised Standards and Interpretations applied in the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA™).

Amendments to HKFRSs

—RER
ARRRERERBSAMAINRRE
RO - HRGAR2009F128178EF
BMERGMARDA ([BRM]) £
™+ HE 3= E AMaples Corporate
Services Limited P.O. Box 309, Ugland
House, Grand Cayman KY-1104,
Cayman Islands @ HF Z & ¥ 2 Ak
B R & AT LU & R B RA 1L — 5K 7
5% o

BAMBRERAARE (TARE])
B ARBTREARARETIZEMEL
AR o

ARAREMBAR ([REE])MEE
FEREENRHERGRBERES AT
L

ERFAIREEITEEMBREE
A((ERMBREER])
FEEHTREETHERR 2B
EXER  AREERATIIEEES
RS ([BEGHAMAE]) BAAH
AR B EM T TG R

BEAMGREEA (BFTX)

Hong Kong Accounting Standard(“HKAS") 24 (as revised in 2009)
EREER ([ZREFEA]) %245 (2000 FEERT)
Amendments to HKAS 32

BB G ERNE 25 (BFTX)

Amendments to HK(IFRIC)-Int |4

Br (BRMERERBEREE) —2EF 145 (BIA)
HK (IFRIC)-Int 19

Er (BRMGHRERBEREE) —R2EF19%

Improvements to HKFRSs issued in 2010

2010 FEM A FE I R E LR M2

Related Party Disclosures

BABE A TR R

Classification of Rights Issues

D 8

Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirement
HIEE & BERNBEMN TR

Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments

ABRATAEMRSRERE

The application of the new and revised HKFRSs in the current year has had no
material impact on Group's financial performance and positions for the current
and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated

financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e TSR R MR

For year ended 31 December 201 |
HE2011 512 831 BILEE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 2. ERAHIREBIALHMBREE

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Cont'd) Al ([EAMBHREER]) (B)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective E R 18 [ K £ X B9 F 5T R ASHE 5T & &
HBHREER

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised HKFRSs that AEEVEREERATIIEBMAERK

have been issued but are not yet effective: AR BB BN B ]REE
Al

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures - Transfers of Financial Assets'

BRMBIMERRETR (BITX) RE-CREESR

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures - Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities?

BRMBREEIETHR (BFTX) RE-BEEREEREBER

Amendments to HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 9 Mandatory Effective Date of HKFRS 9 and Transition Disclosures?

BREMBHERNETRRBEMBRELNEIR (BFIAX) BFAMBREENFRMBHELME R LBRKE

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments?

BRI EERFR SRMIA

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements?

BREMBREEAFE10H e BRR

HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements?

BN BRERMEIR B & 2 B

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities?

BB REEAE1257 YAt T B8 4 2 ) Y R

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement?

BREMBREEAF13%K AFEG 8

HKAS | (Amendments) Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income®

BRGENE 1R (BFIX) Hit2ERARENZF°

HKAS 12 (Amendments) Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets*

BRGIERE125 (BFTF) BB - WA EE

HKAS 19 (Revised 201 1) Employee Benefits?

BAGERE19% 2011 FLER]) B8 @A

HKAS 27 (Revised 201 1) Separate Financial Statements?

BAEGTERE275 (2011 FEIEET) BB WK

HKAS 28 (Revised 201 1) Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures?

BB G ERE 285 (2011 FLIEFT) REERFIRAEEENRE

HKAS 32 (Amendments) Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities®

BB G ERE325% (BF] A) BEEREERERARS

HK(IFRIC)-Int 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine?

Bt (BARPEREREZES) - 2BF20% BB R I5 P R 0 R R A2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ERERMEE

For year ended 3| December 201 |

BE2011E12A31 ALLEE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Contd)
New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective (Cont'd)

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | July 2011
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2013
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2015
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2012
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | July 2012

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2014

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of the new and
revised HKFRSs will have no material impact on the consolidated financial

statements of the Group.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical
cost basis. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the

consideration given in exchange for assets.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of
the Company and entities controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries).
Control is achieved where the Company has the power to govern the financial

and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with those used by

other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated in

full on consolidation.

Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold in the normal

course of business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when all the following conditions

are satisfied:

*  the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards

of ownership of the goods;

* the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the
degree usually associated with ownership nor effective control over the

goods sold;
*  the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

* it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction

will flow to the Group; and

*  the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be

measured reliably.

3.

e M IRRHGE

For year ended 31 December 201 |
HZ 2011512 A31 BIEFRE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M IERRHEE

For year ended 3| December 201 |
HE20ME12 831 BIEER

76

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Revenue recognition (Contd)

Revenue from sale of antenna system, base station RF subsystem and coverage
extension solution is recognised when the goods are delivered and title has

passed.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of income can be
measured reliably. Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net

carrying amount on initial recognition.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes
(other than properties under construction as described below) are stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position at cost less subsequent

accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment other than properties under construction less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in

estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or
administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised impairment
loss. Costs include professional fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs
capitalised in accordance with the Group'’s accounting policy. Such properties
are classified to the appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on
the same basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are

ready for their intended use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Property, plant and equipment (Cont'd)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued
use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is

recognised in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
calculated using the weighted average method. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of

completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position when a group entity becomes a party to the

contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are

recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL") and loans and receivables. The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined

at the time of initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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BAES R M EE

For year ended 3| December 201 |
HE20ME12 831 BIEER

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of
a financial asset and of allocating interest income over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts (including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a

shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt

instruments.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at FVTPL represented those designated as at FVTPL on initial

recognition.

A financial asset may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

*  such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or

recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

*  the financial asset forms part of a group of financial assets or financial
liabilities or both, which is managed and its performance is evaluated on a
fair value basis, in accordance with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information about the grouping

is provided internally on that basis; or

* it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives,
and HKAS 39 permits the entire combined contract (asset or liability) to
be designated as at FVTPL.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Contd)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss(Cont'd)

Financial assets at FVTPL (i.e. structured deposits) are measured at fair value,
with changes in fair value arising from remeasurement recognised directly in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise. The net gain or loss recognised
in profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on the financial assets
and is included in the other income line item in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to
initial recognition, loans and receivables (including trade and other receivables,
pledged bank balances and bank balances and cash) are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any identified impairment losses

(see accounting policy on impairment loss on loans and receivables below).

Impairment of loan and receivables

Loan and receivables are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of
the reporting period. Loan and receivables are considered to be impaired
when there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the loans and receivables, the

estimated future cash flows of the loans and receivables have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

—  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

—  breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest and

principal payments; or

— it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or financial

re-organisation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)

Impairment of loan and receivables(Cont'd)

For certain categories of loans and receivables, such as trade receivables and
notes receivable that are assessed not to be impaired individually are, in
addition, assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group's past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the portfolio past the average credit period of 30-240 days (2010:
30-120 days), observable changes in national or local economic conditions that

correlate with default on receivables.

The amount of the impairment loss recognised is the difference between the
asset's carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash

flows discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss
directly with the exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When a
trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off

are credited to profit and loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
losses was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at
the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost

would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified
as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of
the contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial

liability and an equity instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Cont'd)

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the
assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Group are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct

issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognised and
deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on
the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company's own equity

instruments.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of
a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial

recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities including trade and other payables, dividend payable and
bank borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the

effective interest method.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Cont'd)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to
the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset
and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the
Group continues to recognise the asset to the extent of its continuing
involvement and recognises an associated liability. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises

a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the
asset's carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or

loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group's
obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration

paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees

The fair value of services received determined by reference to the fair value of
share options granted at the grant date is expensed on a straight-line basis
over the vesting period, with a corresponding increase in equity (share option

reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of the
number of options that are expected to ultimately vest. The impact of the
revision of the original estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised
in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate,

with a corresponding adjustment to share option reserve.

When the share options are exercised, the amount previously recognised in
share option reserve will be transferred to share premium. When the share
options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share option reserve will be

transferred to retained profits.

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts
of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or
otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for

which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.
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84

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)
Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets (Cont'd)
Intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment at least

annually, and whenever there is an indication that they may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for

which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a
cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss

is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the
asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment

loss is recognised as income immediately.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and

deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit
differs from profit as reported in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting

period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Taxation (Contd)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
difference to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable

profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences arising
on investments in subsidiaries except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such investments are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary

differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of the
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be

recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset is
realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Taxation (Contd)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group expects,
at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of

its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates
to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the period in

which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development (or from the
development phase of an internal project) is recognised if, and only if all the

following have been demonstrated:

— the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be

available for use or sale;

— the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;

— the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

— how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits;

— the availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to

complete the development and to use or sell the intangible assets; and

— the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the

intangible asset during its development.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Research and development expenditure (Cont'd)

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible asset is the
sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when the intangible asset first
meets the recognition criteria listed above. Where no internally-generated
intangible asset can be recognised, development expenditure is charged to
profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. Subsequent to initial
recognition, internally-generated intangible asset is measured at cost less

accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (if any).

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates)
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the
end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are

not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on the
retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period

in which they arise.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale are added
to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are substantially ready

for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in

which they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that
the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to them and that the

grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over
the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses the related costs for
which the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically, government grants
whose primary condition is that the Group should purchase, construct or
otherwise acquire non-current assets are recognised as deferred income in the
consolidated statement of financial position and transferred to profit or loss

over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or losses
already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to
the Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the

period in which they become receivable.

Retirement benefits costs
Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes are recognised as an
expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to the

contributions.

Leasing
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other

leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term, except where another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased

asset are consumed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group'’s accounting policies, which are described in
note 3, the directors of the Company are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are

considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future

periods.

Income taxes

As at 31 December 2011, a deferred tax asset of approximately RMB6,063,000
(2010: RMB5,657,000) in relation to deductible temporary differences of MOBI
Shenzhen has been recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position (note 17) while no deferred tax asset has been recognised on the tax
losses of RMB21,016,000 (2010: RMB12,158,000) of MOBI Technologies (Xi
An) Co,, Ltd. ("MOBI Xian") and MOBI Technology (Hong Kong) Limited
("MOBI HK") due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. The
realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether sufficient
profits or taxable temporary differences will be available in the future. In cases
where the actual future assessable profits generated are more or less than
expected, a recognition or reversal of deferred tax assets may arise, which
would be recognised in profit or loss for the period in which such a

recognition or reversal takes place.
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BE2011E12A31 ALLEE

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able
to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to owners through
the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy

remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of bank borrowings, cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising

issued capital, share premium and other reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a semi-annual
basis. As a part of this review, the directors of the Company consider the cost
of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. Based on
recommendation of the directors, the Group will balance its overall capital
structure through the payment of dividends, new share issues as well as raising

of new bank loans.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

Details of the significant accounting policies adopted, including the criteria for
recognition, the basis of measurement and the bases on which income and
expenses are recognised, in respect of each class of financial assets and
financial liabilities are disclosed in note 3. Details of these financial instruments

are disclosed below:

EXmBER
AEBEREEANRRKEABTS
DRTNGEEE - FRF EH RS
MEETE  ARRERBALE - %
Fi - ARENERERRETE -

AEENBAERBERITER  RE
RREEBMRARAHEE AREER
(BREZETERA KHEEBREMRH
) o

FRRIEEBFFRAETER - FR
BAN—ED  ARAEZTEREAK
FEZBENHBENER - REESEHN
#E - AREREAXNKRE - BIOH
BREMERTERATERAEENER
BRI

il

BREREERBEREE
FRESEsREERERABBRMANE
ZEH IR (BRBRED  FEEER
W iR EE) MF BN EIRE -
ZEERTANFERENT :

Categories of financial instruments EMIANER
2011 2010
20115 2010%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTR ARBETT
Financial assets tREE
Loans and receivables (including ERRERER
bank balances and cash) (BERITESKEEAR) 1,014,774 1,158,464
Financial liabilities A SN
Amortised cost B 523,255 622,609
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Contd)
Financial risk management objectives and polices

The Group's major financial instruments include trade and other receivables,
pledged bank balances, bank balances and cash, trade and other payables,
dividend payable and bank borrowings. Details of these financial instruments
are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these exposures to ensure

appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Credit risk

The Group’s principal financial assets are trade and other receivables, bank
balances and cash and pledged bank balances, which represent the Group's
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial assets at the end of
the reporting period. The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to its
trade receivables and notes receivable. The credit risk on trade receivables and
notes receivable are concentrated on top five customers of the Group. In
order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group has delegated
a team responsible for determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. The Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual trade receivable and notes receivable at the end of the reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors of the Company consider the Group’s

credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk of the Group on liquid funds is limited because the majority of
the counterparties are international banks and state-owned banks with good

reputation.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Contd)
Credit risk (Contd)

The Group sells most of the products to a small number of customers in the
PRC. If the Group is unable to broaden the customer base and expand
relationships with major wireless network solution providers and major
network operators, the business may continue to be impacted by
unanticipated demand fluctuations which can have a negative impact on the
revenues and business, and an adverse effect on the results of operations and

financial condition.

The Group has a significant concentration of customers. For the year ended 31
December 201 |, aggregate sales to the top five customers of the Group
accounted for approximately 89.9% (2010: 92.4%) of the total sales. Amount
due from them as at 3| December 2011 amounted to approximately
RMB359,679,000 (2010: RMB429,948,000), representing 76.4% (2010: 81.3 %)
of trade receivables (before making allowance for doubtful debt) as at 3|
December 201 1. These major customers are PRC network operators and
domestic and overseas wireless network solution providers with good

reputation.

Currency risk

The Group has foreign currency sales and purchases and certain trade
receivables, bank balances, trade payables and bank borrowings of the Group
are denominated in United States dollar ("USD"), Euro (“"EUR") and Hong
Kong dollar (“HKD"), currencies other than the functional currency of the
Company's principal subsidiaries, which expose the Group to foreign currency
risk. The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
However, the management monitors foreign exchange exposure and will

consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure when the need arises.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Contd)
Currency risk (Contd)
The carrying amount of the Group's foreign currency denominated monetary

assets and monetary liabilities at the end of the reporting period are as

e M IRRHGE

For year ended 31 December 201 |
HE2011 512 831 BILEE

BEEREERBEREE (B)
axEk (&)
REBPRAEEUIINEHENERE
ERERAANEKREDT

follows:
2010
20114 20104
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
BE =L BE BfE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARBTRT AR®TR ARBTT ARETR
UusD ETT 92,437 27,366 77,241 5,557
EUR BT 4817 — 4511 —
HKD BT 2,594 1,185 124,578 2,546

The following table details the sensitivity to a 5% (2010: 5%) change in the
RMB against USD, EUR and HKD. The 5% (2010: 5%) represents management's
assessment of the reasonably possible change in the foreign exchange rates.
The sensitivity analyses of the Group's exposure to foreign currency risk at the
end of the reporting period have been determined based on the adjustment
of translation of the monetary assets and liabilities at the end of the reporting
period for a 5% (2010: 5%) change in foreign currency rates. A negative
number indicates a decrease in the post-tax profit where RMB strengthens
against USD, EUR and HKD. For a 5% (2010: 5%) weakening of RMB against
USD, EUR and HKD, there would be an equal and opposite impact on the
post-tax profit.

TEREEAKRBEARELET BT K
HBIL5% (2010F : 5%) BB HRE F
18 ° 5% (2010%F : 5%) HE BB YN &
EXSBHAUEIZHNTME - ARER
2 IR A AR ) I TR K o B ) B K
EAMDEEEEERBBERERER
ER5% (2010F : 5%) INEE R E Bk
HEELAREE - BERTARER
En BT RBTABERRTHEZRT
L  MARBEEET  BTRETE
1B5% (20106 : 5%) M5 * Fif&)m Fl#&
SHBRASERARNTE -
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6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Contd)
Currency risk (Contd)

6.

BREEREEEEREE (£)
E¥ER ()
At 3| December

R12A318
2011 2010
21145 2010%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT
Decrease in post-tax profit (i) 73 1 0 AR A (1)
If RMB strengthens against USD g AR K ETIE (2,758) (3,007)
If RMB strengthens against EUR WAREEBRITIHE (204) (191
If RMB strengthens against HKD WMAREEBTIE (59) (5,477)

(i)  This is mainly attributable to the outstanding foreign currency receivables,
bank balances and bank borrowings as at the end of the reporting period
as a result of the foreign currency sales in the Group and the proceeds

from issue of shares of the Company.

In management's opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the
inherent foreign exchange risk as the year end exposure does not reflect the

exposure during the year.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk which arises from pledged
bank balances (note 21) and fixed rate bank borrowings (note 23) in 201 | and
2010. Interest bearing pledged bank balances and fixed rate bank borrowings
are mainly short-term nature. Therefore, any variations in interest rate will not

have a significant impact on the results of the Group.

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk which arises from bank
balances which carry interest at prevailing market rates (note 21) and floating
rate bank borrowings (note 23) in 201 | and 2010. Other than those arising
from discounted notes receivable, the Group keeps its borrowings at floating

rate of interests so as to minimise the fair value interest rate risk.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Contd)
Interest rate risk (Contd)

The Group currently does not have an interest rate hedging policy. However,
the management monitors interest rate exposure and will consider hedging

significant interest rate exposure should the need arise.

The following illustrates the potential effect on the post-tax profit for the year:

e M IRRHGE

For year ended 31 December 201 |
HZ 2011512 A31 BIEFRE

BEEREERBEREE (B)
REmR (&)

REE B A AN R R R
%@EQ%%W%@%*WEE%K%
ZREPEAMKER -

HERBREBNNBEZENT

2011 2010
20115 20106
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR AR®T T
(Note a) (Note b)
(Kt&a) (P D)
If the interest rate goes up fid ¥ R £
Increase in post-tax profit Bif& s A m 649 1,015

Notes:

(@) If interest rate on bank balances had been 30 basis points higher and interest rate
on short-term floating rate bank borrowings had been 50 basis points higher and

all other variables were held constant.

(b) If interest rate on bank balances had been 30 basis points higher and all other

variables were held constant.

PEE

(a) BRPITHBOFEEMIMEE - 2
H7 BRITAE MM HIE ME0EES -
i A E At B B R A o

b)  BRRTEBOHEEN0BELT
ARBERRETE -

BHREERAT 20115358 95



96

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE TSR R MR

For year ended 3| December 201 |
HE20ME12 831 BIEER

6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Contd)
Interest rate risk (Cont'd)

The following illustrates the potential effect on the post-tax profit for the year.

6.

PREREERBEREE ()
FZzmER (&)
ATEIIHFRARRENNEETE -

2011 2010
20115 20105
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®B TR ARETT
(Note c) (Note d)
(BtzEc) (Pt £ d)
If the interest rate goes down (R EN S
Decrease in post-tax profit Tt 18 )4 AR (723) (807)
Notes: Ptz

(c) If interest rate on bank balances denominated in HKD and other foreign
currencies had been 0.1 basis point and 30 basis points lower, respectively, and
interest rate on short-term floating rate bank borrowings had been 50 basis

points lower and all other variables were held constant.

(d) If interest rate on bank balances denominated in HKD and other foreign
currencies had been | basis point and 30 basis points lower, respectively, and all

other variables were held constant.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains a
level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the management to
finance the Group's operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings and

ensures compliance with loan covenants.

Banking facilities available to the Group are approximately RMB498,252,000
(2010: RMB526,227,000).

The Group relies on bank balances and cash, and bank borrowings as a source
of liquidity. Undrawn borrowing facilities of the Group are approximately

RMB342,660,000 as at 31 December 201 | (2010: RMB306,720,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Contd)
Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

The following table details the remaining contractual maturity for its financial
liabilities. The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. To the
extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived

from interest rate at the end of the reporting period.

Liquidity risk table

Weighted
average
effective
interest rate Payable 0030
METH  on demand days
REAZ BEXHE 0230
% RMBO0O  RMB'00O
% ARBTR ARETR

6.

31 to 60

days
31E60K
RMB'000

e M IRRHGE

For year ended 31 December 201 |
HZ 2011512 A31 BIEFRE

PEEBEEREREE (&)
RBELAER (B)

TERASBEeMARSG T A R2IHA
MR ZXBIMERETBREA
8 - WAMERFBFEAE - AARFR
TREREARNMEETE
Carrying
amount at

Total 3| December

undiscounted 011

610090 90180 180t0365 cashflows RWIIE
days days dys  BKFRE  12A3IA
61290 91Z180% 1802365k  RéW  REE
RMB'OO0  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

ARBTR ARMTR ARBTT ARMTR ARETR ARETR

2011 011E
Trade and other payebles 8 RAMENE NADER 2581 94149 68574 68217 12,636 1959 ATIMT 4TI
Dividend payable EfikE NATER 69 — - - - = 699 699

Bank borrowings HiTiEH

~Varible nerest ate -RENE 258 - - - - — % 160
- ived inerest rate ~EEHE 945 - - 0 -8 — N e
06511 94149 88,597 68217 38233 7959 513666 523255
Carrying
Weighted amount at
average Total 31 December
effective undiscounted 2010
interest rate Payable 01030 3lt060 61090 Iltol80 180to365 cashfows  H20108
METS  on demand days days days days dys  BAFR  12A31A
ERAE EEREE  0E0K  NE60K  G1ENR 9IE180K 180E365K R FAH
% RMBOOO ~ RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO
% ARETR ARETT ARETR ARBTI ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR

2010 2010%
Trade and other payzbles 8ARAMENE NATER 89217 136670 109479 96,964 34,187 537 684 6B
Dividend payble EfRE NATER 735 = = = = = 7% 7%
23995 136670 109479 96,964 34,187 5357 622609 622609

EELLERARAR 2011 5%
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98

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Contd)
Fair value

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities is determined in
accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash
flow analysis. The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated

financial statements approximate their fair values.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the chief executive officer of the Company, being the
chief operating decision maker (*CODM"), for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses on types of goods

or services delivered or provided.

The Group's reportable and operating segments under HKFRS 8 are as

follows:

Antenna system - manufacture and sale of antenna system and related

products

Base station RF subsystem - manufacture and sale of base station RF subsystem

and related products

Coverage extension solution - manufacture and sale of a wide array of

coverage products
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For year ended 31 December 201 |

HBE2011F12 A31 BILEE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Contd) 7. EEXERSBER ()
Information of segment revenues and segment results FRIBUARSBEENER
2011 2010
20115 2010%F
RMB’000 RMB000

ARBTR AR®T T

Segment revenues 2 EUA
Antenna system PN ¥ S0 248,025 348,376
Base station RF subsystem B BT RS 472,151 563,512
Coverage extension solution BELMRAE 77,884 129,532
798,060 1,041,420
Segment results P
Antenna system PN ¥ S0 54,711 94,159
Base station RF subsystem B BT RS 94,191 14,614
Coverage extension solution BELMRAE 25,648 9,117
174,550 217,890
Reconciliation of segment results DEEREEB AN B -
to profit before taxation:
Other income HiA 14,232 12973
Other expenses Hth 52 (135,825) (128,437)
Finance costs LUB 7 ID N (58) (3:471)
Profit before taxation 758 A1) 1) 52,899 98,955
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For year ended 3| December 201 |
HE20ME12 831 BIEER

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Contd) 7. EEERIBER (B)
Information of segment revenues and segment results (Cont'd) ERIBURARDBEENER ()
201 | 2010
21145 2010%
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR AR®T T

Other segment information Hith &R
Depreciation: E
Antenna system REFH 4,479 3937
Base station RF subsystem B R R4 8,527 6,369
Coverage extension solution BELMHEAR 1,407 464
Segment total 7 BB E 14,413 11,770
Unallocated amount Pl ek 8,543 6,140
Group total SEEG 22,956 17910
Research and development costs: FREERACA
Antenna system PN E 13,597 12,112
Base station RF subsystem BV HRF R4 19,505 16,260
Coverage extension solution BELHEAR 4,489 8,723
Group total SEEG 37,591 37,095
Amortisation: B
Antenna system PN E 809 226
Base station RF subsystem EULGTIRF R4t 851 279
Group total SBE#E: 1,660 505
Revenues reported above represent revenues generated from external FXEFHRARKENDBEF K
customers. There are no inter-segment sales during the two years ended 3| A BE201MF12ANBIERMFRE L&
December 201 |. DEPREHE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd)

Information of segment revenues and segment results (Cont'd)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as the Group’s
accounting policies described in note 3. The Group does not allocate other
income, distribution and selling expenses, administrative expenses, finance costs
and income tax expense to individual reportable segments when making
decisions about resources to be allocated to the segments and assessing their
performance. This is the measure reported to CODM for the purposes of

resource allocation and performance assessment.

No segment information on assets and liabilities is presented as such
information is not reported to the CODM for the purposes of resource

allocation and performance assessment.

Entity-wide disclosures:
Information about products
Revenues from each group of similar products within the operating segments

are as follows:

e M IRRHGE

For year ended 31 December 201 |

HBE2011F12 A31 BILEE

EXBERIBER (B)
ARADBUARDBEENER (£)
2R MOSEBREM E3MAAE
e HRAR - AEERREDEE
RYE2HBIBRAGERAR T8
REMBA - DERBERS - THH
X - MBRARAB XD E T @5
EHNH  KTIARTEERRAZR
NRESEEREFHERRNTA -

HREERAGENBENLERARRZ
BRRAZHUREERKAERR -
HUELFIZEER -

ER2EREER:

EBRERNER

BES TR ARSIV Ll O
N

2011 2010
20115 20105
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETT

Antenna system KRR

CDMA/GSM fixed-downtilt antennas CDMA/GSM [l FMEX AR 49,591 77,777

CDMA/GSM remote CDMA/GSM #£ 5 & 3 T 18K 47
electric-downtilt antennas 20,463 50,424
W-CDMA antennas W-CDMA X # 73,556 76418
TD-SCDMA antennas TD-SCDMA X £ 12,616 29,376
Multi-band/Multi-system antenna 2 VET S PN 52,423 48,559
Microwave antennas TN 14,077 25,693
Other antennas Hfth R AR 25,299 40,129
248,025 348,376
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7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd)

Entity-wide disclosures: (Contd)

Information about products (Contd)

EXEROHER ()
ERZ2EREER: (B)
EHERNER (B)
201 | 2010
20115 20104
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®B TR ARETT

Base station RF subsystem RIGGTHEF FE
CDMA 2000 RF devices CDMA 2000 57 #8221 12,836 32,704
CDMA RF devices CDMA 575828 ¢ 21,409 13,964
GSM RF devices GSM 5f paz: 1 370,355 450,789
TD-SCDMA RF devices TD-SCDMA 51 Ja 22 14 13,394 31,293
W-CDMA RF devices W-CDMA 51 JE 28 1 34,325 21,402
Other devices Hib s 19,832 13,360
472,151 563,512

Coverage extension solution BERMEER

In-door antennas ERNKE 697 4176
Aesthetic antennas e~ 31,428 37,861
Other products H 2 o 31,257 20,746
Electric cables BB 14,502 66,749
77,884 129,532
798,060 1,041,420
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HBE2011F12 A31 BILEE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Contd) 7. EEXERSBER ()
Entity-wide disclosures: (Cont'd) ERZEHEER: (B)
Information about major customers EHTEZEFMER
Revenues from customers of the corresponding years contributing over 10% KEREBEFEHRERRHEEAR
of the total sales of the Group are as follows: HBR10%NEPHBART
2011 2010
20115 2010%F
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR AR®T T

Customer A EPA 256,552 315,522

Customer B? XF B? 176,945 122,910

Customer C? R C? 126,057 253,610

Customer D’ &P D 86,310 171,366

' revenue from antenna system and base station RF subsystem ! FERERBREREUGIET ZHEH
YA

2 revenue from base station RF subsystem 2 FERBEUSTETFRFHRA

: revenue from antenna system S FERERBERGHRA
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BE2011E12A31 ALLEE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Contd) 7. BEERIBEN(B)
Entity-wide disclosures: (Cont'd) ERZ2EREER: (B)
Geographical information i EE R
An analysis of the Group'’s geographical information on revenues attributed to TREFIAEERET PP E 5 603
the region on the basis of the customers' location is set out in the following EREGEEARMEER DT
table:
2011 2010
2011% 20105
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETT

PRC H 683,327 933,840
Overseas SN
India ENfE 235 5,569
Finland 2N 37,243 57488
Mexico ayiitho s 4],832 6,36
Others Hith 35,423 38,162
Subtotal INE 114,733 107,580
798,060 1,041,420
All non-current assets (other than deferred tax assets) of the Group are AEEMAERDEE (BEHEEER
located in the PRC. AN BRI AR E o
8. OTHER INCOME 8. HttlA
2011 2010
201 15 20104
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR AR®T T

Government grants BB

— related to expense items —HERxER AR 4,159 6,245
— related to assets (note 24) —HEEERE (M 24) 1,258 1,452
Compensation income ERA 1,207 932
Interest income from bank deposit FITERMBWA 3,195 3,689
Interest income from structured deposit EEUFEROHFEBA 4,238 —
Others Hfth 175 655

14,232 12,973
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FINANCE COSTS
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For year ended 31 December 201 |
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9. HIHRA
2011 2010
20115 20104
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETT

Interest on bank borrowings RITEFKFE
— wholly repayable within five years —2HERLFRNEE 58 3471
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10. FAEHRAX
2011 2010
20115 20105
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETT

Current year: RER :
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") REERAER ([PECEMREHR]) 10,947 13,177
Deferred tax (note 17) EERE (M 17) (406) 1,673
10,541 14,850

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands and is exempted from

income tax. It is not subject to tax in other jurisdictions.

Hong Kong
The applicable tax rate of MOBI HK is 16.5%. No provision for Hong Kong
Profits Tax has been made in the consolidated financial statements as MOBI HK

has no assessable profits for both years.

AABRRNASRSEMKL - REAM
MATEM - RRARBRHTE M ADERE
BHBIE ©

BB

BUHEBNERTNER165%  ARE
HEBRMEFEHEERRTERN - &
BRAEGAMBRRPAREAENEH
B o
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HE20ME12 831 BIEER
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Contd)

PRC

In 2008, MOBI Shenzhen was a High and New Technology Enterprise defined
by Shenzhen Finance Bureau, Administrator of Local Taxation of Shenzhen
Municipality and Shenzhen Municipal office of the State Administration of
Taxation (the “Authority”) and therefore was entitled to 15% preferential tax
rate from PRC enterprise income tax for three years starting from 2008,
according to the New PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law. On 3| October 2011,
the Authority has further extended the preferential tax rate for further three
years. Accordingly, the tax rate for MOBI Shenzhen is 15% for the two years
ended 3| December 201 | and 2010.

According to the New PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, the applicable tax rate
of ELb BT (F%) BB A MOBI Telecommunication Technologies (ji
An) Co,, Ltd. (“MOBI Jian") was 25% from 2008. In accordance with the tax
legislations applicable to MOBI Jian, it was entitled to exemption from PRC
enterprise income tax for the two years commencing from its first profit
making year of operations in 2006, after offsetting all unexpired tax losses
carried forward from previous years, and thereafter, entitled to a 50% relief
from PRC enterprise income tax of 25% for the next three years. Accordingly,
the tax rate for MOBI Jian was 12.5% for the year ended 3| December 2010.
The tax rate for MOBI Jian is 25% for the year ended 31 December 201 I.

The applicable tax rate of MOBI Xian 25% (2010: 25%) for the year ended 3|
December 201 I.

MOBI Development Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2011
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10.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e TSR R MR

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Contd)

Tax charge for the vyear is reconciled to profit before taxation as follows:

For year ended 31 December 201 |

HBE2011F12 A31 BILEE

10. FIEHAX (&)

FERBEXHERANENEHRMT

Year ended 31 December

W12B31HILEE
2011 2010
2011& 20104
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETT

Profit before taxation 74 A1 4 7 52,899 98,955
Tax at PRC EIT at 15% BRAEGRAEHBE 15%
SHERNIE () 7,935 14,843

Tax effect of expenses not deductible TEREREFAXNB BT E

for tax purpose 2,013 572
Tax effect of income not taxable BRRABBANHRBEZE

for tax purpose (189) (1'17)
Tax benefit gy vilke (b) (2,206) (1,895)
Effect of 50% tax relief FELL R 50% TSR 2 1Y

granted to MOBI Jian - = (1,294)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised *ﬁ@u/b BRBEERNRETE 1,329 567
Effect of different tax BEBNTRNENTE

rates of group entities 1,659 2461
Effect of excess of applicable tax rate for ~ ELERBENERHE SR

deferred tax over current tax AR LR L ZED

on deductible temporary difference IS B 2 = (287)
Tax charge for the year FERBERY 10,541 14,850
Notes: Ptz

(@) Applicable income tax rate of 15% represents the relevant income tax rate of
MOBI Shenzhen, the major subsidiary of the Company which generates majority

of the Group's assessable profit.

(b) Tax benefit represents an incentive scheme that, in addition to the research and
development cost incurred which is deductible for tax purpose, a further 50% of

the research and development cost incurred is deductible.

(@) 16%MERMEHBREELEARER
BORARBNOARA I EFAAE
EARYIM MR RIS B X

(b)  BBMEIERE S - BRI R AR
BRI - 55050% HE EEFREK
AJRAI L o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE TSR R MR

For year ended 3| December 201 |
HE20ME12 831 BIEER

I1. PROFIT AND THE TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE 11. AATEEAEGNEERNBEE 2

YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY ELON
Profit and the total comprehensive income for the year has been arrived at FEMBRZEKALED M GEA)
after charging (crediting) the following items: WTNER :
2011 2010
20116 20105
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETT

Directors' remuneration (note 12) E=HE (MF12) 2,481 2,659
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RINEFET I 6,986 7,028
Other staff costs (a) Hith 8 T A (a) 136,249 120,061
145,716 129,748
Auditors’ remuneration ZEA B & 1,587 1,590
Operating lease rentals in respect of BERAATEENKLHER S
— prepaid lease payments —FENAERIE 453 462
— rented premises —BHYE 9,431 6,562
Depreciation of property, ME - BERRBINE
plant and equipment 22,956 17,910
Amortisation of intangible assets BREESH 1,660 505
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses R R NFEK AR 585,919 786,435
Write-down on inventories TFEHOR
(include in administrative expenses) (FEAFTE ) 415 830
Gain on disposals of property, HEME - BERR BN
plant and equipment (19) —
Allowance for doubtful debts AR 568 —
Net exchange loss EHEEFE 7,249 13,796
Note: Pifsr
(@) Included in other staff costs is approximately RMB2,514,000 (2010: B HEMEIRABEHMAREY
RMB2,859,000), which represents the rental expense for the staff quarter for the 2,514,000t ( 2010F @ A R %
year ended 3| December 201 I 2,859,0007T) & £20114 128318

LFEEETHEENASMAX -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ERERMEE

For year ended 31 December 201 |

HBE2011F12 A31 BILEE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 12. E2RkEEME
Directors’ emoluments ExMe
The aggregate amounts of emoluments paid and payable to the executive AEEERNRENARAINRITERR
directors and non-executive directors of the Company by the Group are as FRTEENMSLENT -
follows:
2011
2011%
Other
emoluments
(mainly basic

Retirement  salaries, bonus
benefits and allowances)
scheme Hind &

contributions (FZEH

Fees BREF E# Total
ok HEMRE  RERER) @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR AR®TR AR®TR ARETR

Executive directors HITES

Hu Xiang ik — — 927 927
Wang Guoying FEE — 26 787 813
Non-executive directors FYTES

Qu Degian EEg 85 — — 85
Xing Qibin TRE 4 — — Y]
Yan Andrew Y. Bk 82 — — 82
Yang Dong =3 82 — — 82
Lai Yongxiang #EK 32 = = 32
Independent directors BIEZ

Li Tianshu FRAE 148 — — 148
Zhang Han o 135 — — 135
Bao Fan BN 135 — — 135

741 26 1,714 2,481
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ERERMEE

For year ended 3| December 201 |

BE2011E12A31 ALLEE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Contd) 12. EEREEME (&)
Directors’ emoluments (Contd) E=Me (&)
2010
2010%
Other
emoluments
(mainly basic

Retirement  salaries, bonus

benefits and allowances)

scheme HitM&

contributions (FEBH
Fees RIKTEA E% Total
e AEfR  BERER) st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARKTT ARETR AR%TR

Executive directors HTES
Hu Xiang N — — 947 947
Wang Guoying FER = 22 903 925
Non-executive directors FUTES
Qu Degian JERE 88 — — 88
Xing Qibin FBEH 88 — — 88
Yan Andrew Y. ikl 87 — — 87
Yang Dong FR 87 — — 87
Independent directors BUES
Li Tianshu FRAE 157 — — 157
Zhang Han o 140 — — 140
Bao Fan 20 140 — — 140
787 22 1,850 2,659
During the two years ended 31 December 201 |, no emoluments were paid by BZE2011F12A31BERMEE - A5E
the Group to the directors or the five highest paid individuals as an WTRAEEX LT HMA XM
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of & ERBFAMBINMEREEREE
office. None of the directors or the five highest paid individuals has waived any HRE - MERBBFHE - BE2011F12
emoluments during the two years ended 3| December 201 . ANBLEMEE  BEENESHLE

REHFMA T RERREMNRHE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

DIRECTORS” AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Contd) 12.
The five highest paid individuals included two (2010: two) directors for the
year ended 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010, details of whose
emoluments are set out above. The emoluments of the remaining three (2010:

three) highest paid individuals are as follows:

e M IRRHGE

For year ended 31 December 201 |

HBE2011F12 A31 BILEE

EEREEME (B)
HZE2011F12831H &2010%F 12831
REEE hIE&aiMATBERA
(2010F - MB)EF - RENMEFE
HREX - =% (20105 1 =%) &
SEMALTHOMEHIINT -

2011 2010
201 15 20104
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR® TR ARETT

Employees ==

— salaries and other benefits —Fe REMER 2,488 2,200

— contributions to retirement benefits scheme — — R IRFEFIFTEI{E X 76 66
2,564 2,266

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

RENFHNRATRE

2011 2010

20115 2010%F

No. of No. of

employees employees

BEAR EEAH

— HK$ nil to HK$1,000,000 —Z#EJLE 1,000,000 & T 2 3
— HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 — 1,000,001 /&L ZE 1,500,000 & 7T I

EELLERARAR 2011 5%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ERERMEE

For year ended 3| December 201 |

BE2011E12A31 ALLEE

13.

DIVIDENDS 13. K&
2011 2010
20115 2010%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT
Dividends recognised as FRERESRNAES
distribution during the year:
2010 final dividend of HKD0.02 2010 FREME B
(2010: 2009 final dividend of HKD0.03) Tk 0.02 %7 (2010 %
per ordinary share 2009 FARHEIAR 2 0.03 L) 13,272 19,052
A final dividend of HKD0.02 (2010: final dividend of HKD0.02) per share and a BEZEZRMNEE2011F12A3181LF
special dividend of HKDO.0I (2010: nil) per share in respect of the year ended AR S G%0.024 T (2010F : K
31 December 2011 aggregately amounting to approximately HKD23,943,000 HR £0.028 ) BRI EEHR0.017%
(equivalent to RMB19,625,000) has been proposed by the directors and is 7 (20105 « &) + & #£4923,943,000%
subject to approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming annual general 7T (HHER AR%19,625,0007T) @ ZAfF
meeting. BRRRERERRBFAGHAET AE
EARNINGS PER SHARE 4. BRER

The earning figures for calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to the ordinary owners of the Company are based on the

following data:

B EAATEBRESAEESR
HARBHRF AR RE T
BEHE

2011 2010
201 15 20104
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETT

Earnings ZF

Profit for the year and attributable AREER AR
to owners of the Company and
earnings for purpose of basic and BERM R

diluted earnings per share

FREMEAEFEERERR

42,358 84,105
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ERERMEE

For year ended 31 December 201 |

HBE2011F12 A31 BILEE

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE (Contd) 14. SREA (&)
2011 2010
20116 20105
shares ’000 shares '000
TR Tk
Number of shares K& E
Weighted average number of ordinary shares ~ F{EFT E B REARZF
for the purpose of basic earnings per share B L 3 AR AN T 10 B 797,424 796,436
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares TERBER ST E
— 2003 share options — 2003 FHEMRE 9,254 10,107
— 2005 share options — 2005 FREMRIE 5,614 7,730

Weighted average number of ordinary shares A {E&T & & B8 & K

for the purpose of diluted earnings per share BRI T35 2K 812,292 814,273
The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of FE2010F8RAF N EBRMETS
calculating the earnings per share in 2010 has been adjusted retrospectively in HERN2010F FITARE N AR F15
relation to the Bonus Issue in 2010 (details of which are set out in note 25 R FE25()) ©
(a)).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M IERRHEE

For year ended 3| December 201 |
HE2011F 12831 BILFRE

I5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15. W% BER®RHE

Furniture
fixtures and Leasehold
equipment improvements Motor Plant and  Construction
Buildings fxE- HE vehicles  machinery in progress Total
BT ZERRHE NXEE RE BERHE ERIRE @zt
RMBOOO ~ RMBO0O  RMBO0O  RMBOOO  RMBOO0  RMBOOD  RMBOOO
ARBTT ARBTT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARET:
COsT A
At | January 2010 R2010F1 818 58,567 8,208 249 347 91312 8,294 172,365
Additions AE 1,145 | 427 4492 680 19,648 44498 71890
Transfer S 0073 2274 697 — 12493 (37537) —
Disposals & — (98) 9 — (447) — (636)
At 31 December 2010 R2010512 8318 81,805 11811 7,590 4152 123,006 15,255 243619
Additions RE 853 1,197 1,867 543 15,524 34,481 54,485
Transfer gz 1,600 — 1,090 — 6924 (9.614) —
Disposals & - (168) - (131) — — (299)
At 31 December 201 R20ME12A3AE 84258 12,840 10567 4564 145,454 40122 297,805
DEPRECIATION &
At | January 2010 R2010F1A18 474) 4178 1,649 1,969 41652 — 54,190
Provided for the year ERER 2020 | 468 649 478 13,295 — 17910
Eliminated on disposals HERH - (69) 9 - (369) — (529)
At 31 December 2010 R2010512A318 6,761 5577 2207 2447 54578 — 71.57]
Provided for the year ERER 252 1,862 1,403 656 16,509 — 2,956
Eliminated on disposals HERH — (19) — (125) — — (254)
At 31 December 201 R201MF12A318 9,288 7310 3610 2978 71087 — 94273
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 201 R2011E12A318 74970 5530 6957 1,586 74367 4012 203532
At 31 December 2010 R2010512 8318 75,043 6,234 5383 1,705 68428 15,255 172,048

MOBI Development Co., Ltd.
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15.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Contd) 15.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of property, plant and
equipment other than construction in progress over their estimated useful lives
and after taking into account of their estimated residual value, using straight-

line method, at the following rates per annum:

Buildings Over the shorter of the term of lease or
30 vyears

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 19%

Leasehold improvements 9.5% - 31.6%

Motor vehicles 19%

Plant and machinery 9.5% - 19%

The Group'’s buildings are situated in the PRC under medium-term land use

e M IRRHGE

For year ended 31 December 201 |
HZ 2011512 A31 BIEFRE

NE - BEKRRE (B)

W¥  BERRE (ERIRRIN) O
ENREA A REFHANERELZR
fib 5t R BB E 1R 1R A N 5 R M Ak AR 5t
g

BF MEFHHI0F
(AmFEE RE)

BE REREHE 19%

MEMFEEE 9.5%%31.6%

"E 19%

T 5 B i 23 9.5%Z19%

AEENRFENETRTHLHER

rights. R -
PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 16. BNHEERE
2011 2010
20115 20105
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTR ARBETT
Land use rights in the PRC A F B A + 3
Medium-term lease ERETHEE 20,692 21,145
Analysed for reporting purposes as: EWAM
Current portion BNERER 5 453 462
Non-current portion FEBNEREE 20,239 20,683
20,692 21,145
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e M IERRHEE

For year ended 3| December 201 |
HE2011F 12831 BILFRE

116

7. DEFERRED TAX

Excess of
accounting
depreciation
over tax

depreciation

BiiTE

17.

SEEB R

Unrealised

profit of

Allowance inter-company

Allowance for doubtful sales
for inventories BHBB debts AT REHEEN Others Total
BERE FENEE RREE REREA Hit @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETH ARETRT ARETT ARETRT ARETR
At | January 2010 R2010F1 818 108 4029 206 2,987 — 7,330
Credit (charge) to profit or loss FEXBEAE (1K) 56 719 — (2,448) — (1,673)
At 31 December 2010 R 2010512 A31 8 164 4748 206 539 — 5,657
Credit (charge) to profit or loss FEE&HBEARE (1K) (99) 264 85 Qn 177 406
At 31 December 201 | R2011E12831 8 65 5012 291 518 177 6,063

The deferred tax asset as shown on the consolidated statement of financial

position is RMB6,063,000 (2010: RMB5,657,000).

MOBI Development Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2011
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

DEFERRED TAX (Contd)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax losses of
approximately RMB21,016,000 (2010: RMB12,158,000) available for offset
against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
the tax losses either due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.
Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses of RMBI,421,000 (2010: RMB
Nil) that may be carried forward indefinitely. The remaining unrecognised tax
losses are losses of RMBI19,595,000 (2010: RMBI12,158,000) that will be

expired as followings:

e M IRRHGE

For year ended 31 December 201 |
HZ 2011512 A31 BIEFRE

17. BEHE (8)

RERBR  KAEBRBAHRBERD
AEK#21,016,0007C (20105 : AR¥
12,158,0007T) A AR EHA K& F B
PO BE DA 5 R 08 A - A A
BERRECHBEE - AERWKE
BHOEETERBEEEBEARE
1,421,0007C (20105 : ARBZ L) 84
TARRERB % EE AR 19,595,0007T
(2010%F : AR#12,158,0007T) # 5 A
TEEEIE

2011 2010
20114 20104
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T R ARETFT

Tax losses with expiry in: RUTFEINROBEEE
-2013 — 20134 4,131 4,131
-2014 — 2014 % 4,248 4248
- 2015 — 2015 4F 3,779 3779
- 2016 — 2016 7,437 —
19,595 12,158

Under the New Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on dividends declared
in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries from | January 2008 onwards.
Deferred taxation has not been provided for in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of temporary differences attributable to accumulated
profits of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to RMB359,945,000 (2010:
RMB297,592,000) as the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary differences

will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

REFEHFZ - R2008F1A18# -
RAETARRRAENERNKSE
BNENR - REMBREALAREF
BfAREERTENEREBARY
359,945,0007t ( 2010F : A K #
297,592,0007T) sHRELEHE - ARA
CEARHENEREENEE - BY
P 2 RE R AR A AT R SR A o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE TSR R MR

For year ended 3| December 201 |
HE2011F 12831 BILFRE

18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

18. BEEE

Development costs

BREA
RMB'000
ARET T
COST AR
At | January 2010 R201061A1H —
Additions NE 5936
At 31 December 2010 M2010512 A31H 5,936
Additions INE 9,710
At 31 December 201 | Mm2011 %12 A31H 15,646
AMORTISATION e
At | January 2010 R 20101 A1H —
Charge for the year FNHIBR 505
At 31 December 2010 MW 2010F 12 A 31 H 505
Charge for the year FRHIBR |,660
At 31 December 201 | Mm2011F12 A31H 2,165
CARRYING VALUES IREE
At 31 December 201 | Mm2011F12 A31H 13,481
At 31 December 2010 Mm2010%12 A31H 5,431

Development costs on antenna system (TD-SCDMA and LTE Widebank Dual
Pol Directional Antenna) and base station RF subsystem (CDMA2000 and
Crockett 900G Filter) are internally generated and amortised on a straight-line
basis over the 3 vears when they are ready for use. Included in the
development costs of approximately RMB9.0 million (2010: RMB2.8 million)
were relating to development of systems not ready for the intended use and,
accordingly, no amortisation was made. The development of systems not ready
for the intended use are expected to generate net cash flow to the Group, and

no impairment loss has been recognised.

MOBI Development Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2011
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20.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M IRRHGE

For year ended 31 December 201 |
HZ 2011512 A31 BIEFRE

INVENTORIES 19. #&
2011 2010
20115 20106
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARET R ARETFTT
Raw materials R 57,881 56516
Work-in-progress Pt 39,218 25,026
Finished goods SUpK in 229,782 226313
326,881 307,855
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 20. EZREMEURIRRR
2011 2010
2011% 20104
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARET R ARETFTT
Trade receivables FEUE 5 8RR 471,056 528,541
Less: allowance for doubtful debts B REREE (1,939) (1371
469,117 527,170
Notes receivable eSS 220,796 171,548
Rental and utility deposits MeREEEe 2,896 1,700
Advance to suppliers [a] { FE g B K 9,319 8,729
Value added tax receivable FE W B (B T 45,792 17,147
Other receivables and deposits Hib U R R iES 16,115 8,043
764,035 734,337
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts R
Balance at beginning of the year FEER 1,371 1,371
Allowance for doubtful debts REEB 568 —
Balance at end of the year FRAH 1,939 1,371

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are individually impaired trade
receivables with an aggregate balance of approximately RMB1,939,000 (2010:
RMBI,371,000), which have defaulted on payment. The Company considers
that the recoverability of these receivables is low and therefore allowance for
bad and doubtful debts has been provided. The Group does not hold any

collateral over these balances.

RERETEHEENHARE,939,000
7t (2010%F : AR#¥1,371,00070) KE &
AREESEKER  BRERER - K
ARERAUEZEREFENKET
A HEHRREREE ASEHE
REBRZSEBNERY -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ERERMEE

For year ended 3| December 201 |

BE2011E12A31 ALLEE

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont'd) 20. EZ R HMEKRR (&)

The Group offers credit terms generally accepted in the antenna system, base
station RF subsystem and coverage extension solution manufacturing industry
to its trade customers, which range from 30 to 240 days (2010: 30-120 days),
for a significant number of the Company’s products, although a longer credit
term may be extended to certain customers, depending on price, the size of
the contract, credibility and reputation of the customers. In order to manage
the credit risks associated with trade receivables effectively, credit limits of
customers are evaluated periodically. Before accepting any new customer, the
Group conducts research on the creditworthiness of the new customer and
assesses the potential customer’s credit quality. Trade receivables that are
neither past due nor impaired have the high ranking record attributable to

their corresponding research on the creditworthiness.

The following is an aged analysis based on invoice date of trade receivables net

of impairment losses at the end of the reporting period:

AEENESFEFPREXGRS &
SRTEAARBERMARRETE
BEXNEES ARAKREEMOE
BB 3022408 (2010%F : 302120
LR BETEPIAZTARKRNE
B BYER  ARAKD  BFHE
RERGEMEMTR AERERA
FUEBESEREBNEERR A7
THHEPNEERBETIME - K&
BRMENTEFA  eREREFE
PRERALERTHERFPNEEE
Z BEABEEREE  AERBHN
ERENERESRREIESST
R

U

y
i
B

ATRAREFHRRER BB HNEK
B AN HRBEBR) KR D

2011 2010

20115 20104

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®BTR ARBTT

0 to 30 days 0&30H 207,131 210,959
31 to 60 days 31260H 42,154 56,557
61 to 90 days 61290H 17,525 49,631
91 to 120 days 91Z 120 H 27,290 43,203
121 to 180 days 1212180 H 44,993 41,275
Over 180 days #8180 H 130,024 125,545
469,117 527,170
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ERERMEE

For year ended 31 December 201 |

HBE2011F12 A31 BILEE

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont'd) 20. EZREHMEKRR (&)
The following is an aged analysis based on invoice date of notes receivables at NTRRERARZERBHTHEK
the end of the reporting period: FENRERSN -
2011 2010
20115 20105
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR® TR ARETT

0 to 30 days 0Z30H 12,670 37,752
31 to 60 days 31260H 100,641 50,017
61 to 90 days 61290H 50,574 38,387
Over 90 days #3890 A 56,911 45,392
220,796 171,548

Aged analysis of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired: ERBEYENENERE S RRNER

BRAH

2011 2010
20115 2010
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR® TR ARETT

0 to 30 days 0Z30H — |7
31 to 60 days 31260H I —
61 to 90 days 61290 H — —
91 to 120 days 912120 H 68 |7
121 to 180 days 121 £ 180 H 58 —
Over 180 days i 180 H 3,460 4,089
Total A5t 3,587 4,123
The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances. AEERERARSERNEMER -
The Group’s trade receivables of RMB81,053,000 (2010: RMB74,299,000), AEENERESRRRBARE
were denominated in USD and EUR, foreign currencies of the respective group 81,053,000t ( 2010 @ A R %
entities. 74,299,0007T) - UEBEBE BMINE
ETRETIE -

ELBRERAT 2011 545 121
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE TSR R MR

For year ended 3| December 201 |
HE20ME12 831 BIEER

21.

PLEDGED BANK BALANCES/ BANK BALANCES AND CASH

The Group's pledged bank balances represent bank deposits with original
maturity ranging from 3 months to one year and carry fixed rate interest
ranging from 0.05% to [.31% per annum during the year (2010: 0.05% to
2.25% per annum). They are pledged to banks to secure banking facilities
granted to the Group and notes payables of the Group.

The Group's bank balances and cash comprise cash and bank deposits which
carry interest at prevailing market rates ranging from 0.001% to 0.5% per

annum during the year (2010: 0.02% to 1.17% per annum).

Certain of the Group's pledged bank balance and bank balances and cash with
an aggregate amount of RMB287,894,000 (2010: RMB319,323,000) were
denominated in RMB which is not a freely convertible currency in the
international market. The government of the PRC has implemented foreign
exchange control and the remittance of these funds out of the PRC is subject

to exchange restrictions imposed by the government of the PRC.

Certain of the Group's bank balances and cash of RMBI17,956,000 (2010:
RMB131,524,000), were denominated in USD, EUR and HKD, foreign

currencies of respective group entities.
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21. CERRTES BTEBRRAS

AEENEERRTERELFERE
BRHBE=EAZ—F  KSF0.05E
Z1.31E (20105 : §F0.05F £2.25
B) B EE R EFEORTER  EER
FTERBIIERAEERTEERERE
BN ZEMER o

AEENBTEARRASOEREEE
FTiFii € RIEFF0.001EZ0.5F (2010
F:HF0.02EE1.17E) ME R TIHF
A BHBRITER -

ASEETEHEARTAEBRERTER
E# & - &% AR 287,894,000
(2010%F : AR™319,323,00070) bA A
REHE MARBILIFER MBS
RABE - pERNETIMNEEH - #
BEeBEHPBEFEINEFE P BEBTHE
IR o

AEEBETRAOEBRRRAEARE
17,956,0007c ( 2010%F : A R #
131,524,00070) A EEE R & B HINE
X BT RABTTEE -



22. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ERERMEE
For year ended 31 December 201 |
HBE2011F12 A31 BILEE

22. B5REMENRR

2011 2010

20114 2010

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETT

Trade payables JERTE Z RN 319,064 454,587

Notes payable NES 125,073 131,013

Payroll payable ERTE 11,376 14,080
Payable for purchase of property, BEVE  BEERENEMERR

plant and equipment 9,286 [,148

Other taxes payable HAt R HIE 5,373 8,150

Accrued expenses HIREA 7,805 15,280

Receipt in advance TR IE 54,447 13,358

Others HAth 7,463 5,766

539,887 643,382

The following is an aged analysis based on invoice date of trade payables at the

RERBREEZEHAOENE SR

end of the reporting period: REORRINOT
2011 2010
20114 2010
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® TR ARETT
0 to 30 days 0Z30H 32,450 80,908
31 to 60 days 31&E60H 36,483 73,990
61 to 90 days 61290 H 25,742 75,751
91 to 180 days 912180 H 99,264 165,985
Over 180 days #8180 H 125,125 57,953
319,064 454,587

Typical credit term of trade payable ranges from 60 to 120 days.

ERESEANEER
E120H -

H—fR#EZ60H

EELLERARAR 2011 5%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ERERMEE

For year ended 3| December 201 |

BE2011E12A31 ALLEE

22. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Contd)
The following is an aged analysis based on invoice date of notes payables at

the end of the reporting period:

22. EE&E@ENEE%‘\ (%)

ERPRREZEHHANENREN
ﬁ’%ﬁu‘WZDT

2011 2010
201145 20105

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBT T ARBTFT

0 to 30 days 0Z30H 40,464 12,000
31 to 60 days 31260H 42,725 59,099
61 to 90 days 61290 H 200 21,431
Over 90 days H#iH 90 A 41,684 38,483
125,073 131,013

Typical credit term of note payables ranges from 90 to 180 days.

Certain of the Group’s receipt in advance and others of RMBI [,689,000
(2010: RMB5,557,000), and RMB3,561,000 (2010: RMB2,546,000), respectively,

were denominated in foreign currencies of respective group entities.

23. BANK BORROWINGS

ENRENEEH—REEROEE180
H o

AEBETRRFEREMDBARK
11,689,000t ( 2010F : A R ¥
5,557,000t ) & A R # 3,561,0007T
(20104 : 2,546,0007T) RILEBEEE
BRIMESTE -

23. RITHER

2011 2010

20115 20104

RMB’000 RMB'000

Categories Ehl ARBT T ARBTFT
Short-term bank borrowings: RHRITER

— Unsecured floating rate borrowings —EEMZEEN (a) 12,602 —

— Secured fixed rate borrowings —EHEAEBER (b) 32,607 —

Shown under current liability RRBEBETZ7 45,209 —

(@) The unsecured floating rate borrowings carried at a rate of LIBOR plus

2% per annum which is denominated in USD.

(b) The secured fixed rate borrowings are secured by notes receivable
carried at a rate of 9.45% per annum which is denominated in RMB. The
related notes receivables were discounted with recourse and therefore

they have not been derecognised.
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24. DEFERRED INCOME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Deferred income represents non-recurring government grants received for

acquisition and improvement of property, plant and equipment.

The deferred income is released to the profit or loss over the expected useful

life of the relevant assets. Movements of deferred income during the years are

as follows:

e M IRRHGE

For year ended 31 December 201 |
HZ 2011512 A31 BIEFRE

24, EEWA
I TE U\ 45 B U R 3R 8 % 1 TRT 4 B

T ARBREREKENR  BERR

&

EEW AL EENTE A F A8
BAEBGR FREERANZEH N
T

2011 2010
20115 20104
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR® TR ARETT

Government grant related to assets HEEFRNBFA#YE

At beginning of the year REH] 4812 4,264

Additions NE 867 2,000

Released to profit or loss REREEA (1,258) (1,452)

At end of the year RER 4,421 4812

Analysed for reporting purposes as: EWMAM

Current portion BERED o — 1,243

Non-current portion JEENEE 4,421 3,569
4,421 4,812

EELLERARAR 2011 5%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M IERRHEE

For year ended 3| December 201 |
HE20ME12 831 BIEER

25. SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY

25. ARAFRAK

Number of shares

Issued capital

RHBE BRTRA
2011 2010 2011 2010
20115 20105 20115 20104
Ordinary Ordinary Ordinary Ordinary
shares shares shares shares
EBER gl EER gL
’000 ‘000 usb usD
F& T Y e
Ordinary shares of USD0.000001 each &% 0.000001 £ T
H A
Authorised EE
At beginning and end of the year RENRER 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000.00 2,000.00
Issued and fully paid ERTRARE
At beginning of the year R EEF]) 797,148 705,508 797.15 705.52
Bonus Issue (note a) AR (Mista) — 72,446 — 72.44
Exercise of share options TR E 1,383 751 1.38 075
Issued (note b) B#T (Mizb) — 18,443 — 18.44
At end of the year RER 798,531 797,148 798.53 797.15

MOBI Development Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2011



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ERERMEE
For year ended 31 December 201 |
HBE2011F12 A31 BILEE

25. SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY (Contd)

25. ZRRRAE (B)

Issued capital

ERTEER

2011 2010
2011 & 2010
Ordinary Ordinary
shares shares
Equivalent Equivalent
TEEER FEEAK
RMB RMB
AR®T ARETT

Issued and fully paid ERTRAE
At beginning of the year RREF]) 5,591.55 4,966.53
Bonus lssue ALRREEAT — 494.07
Exercise of share options TR 8.97 5.10
Issued BE&1T — 125.85
At end of the year RER 5,600.52 5,591.55

Issued capital shown in the consolidated statements of financial position as at
31 December 2010 and 31 December 201 | was rounded to RMB6,000 and
RMB6,000 respectively.

There is no movement of authorised ordinary share during the two years

ended 31 December 201 |.

720106 12A 318 k20114 12A31H
RNReBBERRBRINROE FTRA
D 5314 % A #6,0007T i A R #6,000

N

o

=l

BHE2011F12A3NBILMEFEEEY

BRULEZD -

EELLERARAR 2011 5%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE TSR R MR

For year ended 3| December 201 |
HE20ME12 831 BIEER

25. SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY (Contd)
Notes:

a)  Pursuant to a shareholder resolution passed on | June 2010, a bonus of
72,446,099 shares was issued to the persons whose names appeared on the
register of members of the Company at the close of business on | June 2010 on
the basis of one share for every ten shares held on | June 2010, each ranking pari

passu in all respects with the then existing issued shares (“Bonus Issue”).

b)  On I3 January 2010, the Company issued and allotted 18,443,000 ordinary shares
at the offer price of HKD3.38 each (equivalent to approximately RMB54,888,000
in aggregate) as a result of the exercise of the over-allotment option granted as

part of the public offering of the Company’s shares.

c¢)  During the year, the Company repurchased its own shares through the Stock

Exchange as follows:

25. A4
M

a)

c)

AR ()

RIER2010F6 A 1EBBHRR RS
£ ER2010566R 1B EHE TRE
DRI — R AR 5 B R E F2010F6 A 1
B ¥REERKEIARAFARR A M
) AT 21772,446,0990 A1 R% - FRAR
REME I EEEREETROZAR
S ([aRETl) -

201061 A138 AR RIRTEERRK
DRREE—HH &M BEERER
BRREEBERIBELEATRE R
18,443,000/ L@ &K (& £EERAA
R #54,888,0007T) °

FA - AREEBHRABRATIARE
EESFBEMD

No of
ordinary shares Price per share
of US$0.00000| BRER
each Highest Lowest Aggregate
Month of repurchase SREE0.000001% 7T consideration paid
BEAf EERYE 55 BIE ENBNKE
HK$ HK$ HK$ RMB
BT BT BT ARET
December 134,000 0.85 0.80 112,058 91,327
+=-8 134,000 0.85 0.80 112,058 91,327

The above shares were cancelled in January 2012.

None of the Company's subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the

Company's listed securities during the year
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

26. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

Share options were granted on |5 January 2003 (“2003 Option”) and 3|
August 2005 (*2005 Option") for the primary purpose of providing incentives
to directors and eligible employees, and will expire on |5 January 2013 and 31
August 2015 respectively. Under the share option schemes of the Company,
the Board of Directors of the Company may grant options to eligible
employees, including directors of the Company and its subsidiaries, to
subscribe for shares in the Company. Additionally, the Company may, from time
to time, grant share options to an individual consultant or advisor who renders

or has rendered bona fide services to the Company.

At 31 December 201 [, the number of ordinary shares in respect of which
options had been granted and remained outstanding under 2003 Option and
2005 Option was 22,133,500 (2010: 23,516,500), representing 2.77% (2010:

2.95% of the total ordinary shares in issue at end of the reporting period.

No consideration is payable on the grant of an option. Options may be
exercised at any time from |2 months after the date of grant of the share

options to the tenth anniversary of the date of grant.

Details of specific categories of options are as follows:

e M IRRHGE

For year ended 31 December 201 |
HE2011 512 831 BILEE

26. URBZR/BRZ

R 2003F 18158 k20054 88 318 fi
R HEBIRE (5 55 [2003F B ME] &
[2005FBRE)NEZENRAESR
REREERURED mMZEHERES
2 Bl 2013F 18158 k2015 8 8 31
AER - BEARAMNBRIETE &
ARESEARTAERER (BEERA
AREFLRRINES) IREAR ARG
HOBBARAE  JLoh - RARAIRER AR
BRARATREEFARBENENERE
P o5 8 e 52 L B AR 7 o

R2011F128318 * BIRE2003F B
BER2005F ERER HEMRTEEE
BREEFT S R AR 2B /22,133,500
% (2010 : 23,516,5008%) * HAZRF
RERAREETLBRBEN2.77%
(2010 : 2.95%) °

MEFRRLBRENENNHE - BR
EUERLAMEF12EAZKEAE
TAFHENEMERITE

BRENABEENFENT

Exercise price
(before
Capitalisation
Issue and Bonus Fair value

Issue) (note) at grant date

Option type Date of grant Vesting period Exercisable period TRE (RFAEXRLR R A8

BREER REAH BES TS RITRARBT) (HaE) WATE

2003 Option 15/01/2003 15/01/2003 to 14/01/2007 15/01/2004 to 14/01/2013 RMBI .76 RMB0.95

2003 FEEMHE  2003F1 8158 2003F1F16% 20041 R 168 ARE1.76 T AR®0.95 7T
200741 14 A 20134 1 14

2005 Option 31/08/2005 31/08/2005 to 30/08/2010 31/08/2006 to 30/08/2015 RMB3.66 RMBI 36

2005 FHEMRE 2005 8A31H 2005487312 2006 F8A31E AR 3.66 7T ARE1.36 T

20108 A30 A

2015 8 A 30 H

EELLERARAR 2011 5%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE TSR R MR

For year ended 3| December 201 |
HE20ME12 831 BIEER

26. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

130

Note: Pursuant to the board resolution on | June 2010, the exercise prices of 2003 and
2005 Option have been adjusted to RMB0.3208 and RMB0.6655, respectively, due

to Capitalisation Issue (defined below) and Bonus Issue (note 25(a)).

Pursuant to a shareholder resolution passed on 25 November 2009, the
directors were authorised to capitalise an aggregate amount of USD421.24
standing to the credit of the share premium of the Company and to
appropriate such amount as capital to pay up in full at par 421,234,396
sharesfor allotment and issue to the persons whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company at the close of business on 25
November 2009 in the proportion to their then existing shareholdings in the
Company, each ranking pari passu in all respects with the then existing issued

shares (“‘Capitalisation Issue”).

All 2003 option and 2005 option are exercisable as to 25% of the total
number of options on the first anniversary date of grant, and as to the
remaining 75% in 36 subsequently equal monthly installments commencing on
the last day of the month following the month of the first anniversary date of

grant.

In respect of the 2003 Option and 2005 Option exercised during the year, the
weighted average share price at the dates of exercise are HK$2.42 and
HK$2.44 (2010: HK$3.24 and HK$3.00) respectively.
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26. AROXANRS ()

fi3E : RIF2010F6A1ENESERER -
20035 2005 FERIER TR ERE
BT (B2 R TX) RARES (H
#25(a)) T2 AR ZE AR0.3208
TR AR0.66557T ©

BIER 20095 11 A 26H BIBKI MR R RS
R EFEREBEAAARMDEER
ERERBAN UETBEEER B8
ZEFEDBEABEHRAR - LAR2009F
MABAEFAERERAIARARR
EMOATRERKTARERNBRE
L I Bl 3% e B 17421,234,3968% B2 17
BREMHREAEHEEREETROZ
EREER ([ERMLET] -

FT 6 20034 B8 AR 1 2 2005 B AR 1 1A 15
e B @S B Hn 1T R AE A2
25% © M&# TH75%FH 5 A365 - 1B
Ritem—BAFEEAMBAGMT—@
Ah&E—BRBERIIE -

FLERNBITE2003F BB #E %2005 &
BiEmE - RITEB B METSRE
5 Bl 52427 7T % 2.447% 75 (20104 -
3.24% T R3.00%87T) °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ERERMEE

For year ended 31 December 201 |

HBE2011F12 A31 BILEE

26. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Contd) 26. URBZFNRES (&)
The following table discloses movements of the Company's share options held TREBEEBRATRANEARRIBR
by eligible persons during 201 I: TR 20114F )&
Outstanding Outstanding
at Granted Forfeited Exercised Expired at
112011 during during during during 31122011
B2011% the year the year ik the year w2011%
1818 RER RER RER RER  12B318
Option type BRERA HARTHE g R T ER  HATE
2003 Option 2003 FEMRE 12,298,000 — — (451,000) — 11,847,000
2005 Option 2005 FRRE 11,218,500 — — (932,000) — 10286500
23,516,500 — — (1383000 — 22133500
Exercisable at the
end of the year ARERTTE 2,133,500
Exercise price (8
2003 Option 2003 R RMB0.3208 — — 0.3208 — 0.3208
2005 Option 2005 FRRE RMBU.6655 — — 0.6655 — 0.6655
The following table discloses movements of the Company's share options held TREBCEBALRENARRIBRER
by eligible persons during 2010: 20108 &
Outstanding Adjustment Outstanding
at Granted Forfeited of Exercised Expired at
[.1.2010 during during  Bonus Issue during during 31.12.2010
®2010% the year the year Ak the year theyear  12010%
1818 RER RER & RER RER  12R318
Option type BRESA GEXH R pLs AR il B GEXH
2003 Option 2003 B RE 11,200,000 = = 1,118,000 (20,000) — 12,298,000
2005 Option 2005 5B g 10907500 — — 1,041,750 (730.750) - 11,218,500
22,107,500 — — 2159750 (750,750) = 23516500
Exercisable at the
end of the year ARERTTE 23516500
Exercise price 18
2003 Option 2003 B RE RMB0352 - —  RMB0.3208 RMB0352 —  RMB0.3208
ARH0.3527 AR#0.3208T AK%036527 AR$0.3208T
2005 Option 2005 5B RE RMB0.732 - —  RMBO66SS  RMBOIOI —  RMBO6SSS
AR®0.7327 AE#0.66557L ARBOTI017 ARH0.665670

EELLERARAR 2011 5%
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For year ended 3| December 201 |
HE20ME12 831 BIEER

26. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Contd)
The 2003 Option and 2005 Option were granted on |5 January 2003 and 31
August 2005, respectively, with estimated fair value on the grant date of
RMBO0.95 and RMBI.36, respectively.

27. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
The Group as lessee
At the end of the reporting period, the Group was committed to make the
following future minimum lease payments in respect of rented premises under

non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

26.

27.

UBRBZANRS (B)

20034 & MR #& & 20054 8 ik # 2 5
20034 18 158 % 20059 8A 31H &
o REHBAENEHLTEARARA
R¥0.95TRARKE1.367T

REHERH

AEBER/EEA

RERBR  AEEERESATHEL
EROAHERIERMEINR T E
FEMNRRSERSOT :

2011 2010

20114 2010

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR® TR ARETT

Within one year —FR 9,387 6921
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EZENF (EEMFEEEN) 14,896 17,744
24,283 24,665

Leases are negotiated and rentals are fixed for lease terms of one to five years.

MEDBAEME  —ELFHARNNESE

‘E o
28. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 28. BAERE
2011 2010
20115 2010F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® TR ARETT
Capital expenditure contracted for but not FRYEDE  BER
provided in the consolidated financial RENEINERBERSE
statements in respect of the acquisition B RRBEHENERRX

of property, plant and equipment 19,718 42,953

MOBI Development Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2011



29.

30.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The employees of the Group are members of a state-managed retirement
benefit scheme operated by the local government. MOBI Shenzhen, MOBI Jian
and MOBI Xian are required to contribute 10%, 20% and 20%, respectively, of
the payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The
only obligation of these entities with respect to the retirement benefit scheme

is to make the specified contributions.

The retirement benefits scheme contributions made by the Group amounted
to RMB7,012,000 for the year ended 31 December 2011 (2010:
RMB7,050,000).

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) During the year, the Group has the following significant transactions with
Shenzhen Zhongxin Weixiantong Shebei Co., Ltd. which is controlled by a
group of common controlling shareholders of the Company and SZWS.
(details of which are set out in the prospectus of the Company dated 4
December 2009).

29.

30.

e M IRRHGE

For year ended 31 December 201 |
HZ 2011512 A31 BIEFRE

EHRERGE
AEENEE A BNRUNBERE
BRABHFENKE - BRI E
HERRELAREDRIRIER AN
10% ~ 20% K 20% A3 K 48 F 5t 8 4F i
BIERBBHOES - RFRAIMERIK
RFGTEREERMELIEE R

BZE201MEF12A31BLLFE - AEE(E
HERABAFEERAARE
7,012,000t ( 2010% AR B
7,050,0007T) °

BEALRS

(@) MER - REEERY T ELE R
BRBEERAAETUTEAR
5 RN mHEELTRSIBEERA
Al —AEARAERNERRR
ERYImpEE S BRETRAR
PRl (BEEEFRHRRARAR
2009F 12 R4B FHIBEMBRER)

EELLERARAR 2011 5%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ERERMEE

For year ended 3| December 201 |

BE2011E12A31 ALLEE

30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Contd)
(a) (Contd)

The significant transaction between the Group and SZWS are as follows:

30. BEALRS (&)
a) (&)

AEEESIWSETNEARZM

N

2011 2010

2011 2010

RMB’000 RMB’000

Nature of transactions REME ARET T ARET T
Rental expenses HEx 1,169 933
2011 2010

2011 2010

RMB’000 RMB’'000

Related party balances BEA L& AR®TR ARETT
Other receivables H b & U BR 3K 72 72
Other payables Hofth & 151 BR K 2 2

Note: The balance is unsecured, interest-free and payable on demand.

(b) Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of key management

i EH/RER - RRRRERNEE -

b) FEEEABHRM :
EERIBEEEAMKENTM

were as follows: N
2011 2010
20114 2010
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARET R ARETT
Short-term benefits ySRER ] 7,399 7,284
Post-employment benefits BER 2 1E A 222 177
7,621 7,461

The remuneration of directors and key executives is determined having

regard to the performance of individuals and market trends.

The retirement benefits scheme contributions of one director were paid
by Shenzhen Weixiantong Shebei Co., Ltd for the two years ended 3|
December 201 .
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ERERMEE

For year ended 31 December 201 |

HBE2011F12 A31 BILEE

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY 31, RRBEXFEFAAHE
As at the end of both reporting periods, the particulars of the Company's BHEMES2HBER KRR FARFEE
subsidiaries are as follows: mnr

Place and date Issued and fully

of establishment/ paid registered Equity interest

incorporation capital/share capital attributable

Name of subsidiary B3/ B 3L ERTRBTEM to the Group  Principal activities
TREHM WERBEH BX/RA ZEEEGEE FTEEHB
2011 2010
20114 20105
MOBI Shenzhen (V PRC RMB220,000,000 100%  Production and sale of
P& L R Y| 12 August 1999 AR® 220,000,000 7T antennas and
H radio frequency subsystems
19994 8 A 12 A FEREERGMER
BT RS
MOBI Jian O PRC RMB33,000,000 100%  Production and sale of
FE L %) 23 May 2006 A K% 33,000,000 7T antennas and
H radio frequency subsystems
2006 £ 5 A 23 A HERHERGMEL
EHRTEMR
MOBI Xian PRC RMB 120,000,000 100%  Production and sale of
EEL P % 29 April 2008 AEK# 120,000,000 7T antennas and
H radio frequency subsystems
20084 A 29 R FEREERGMER
EFATER
MOBI HK™ Hong Kong HKD10,000,000 100%  Trading of antennas and radio
FE L & 7 |5 December 2010 10,000,000 " 7T frequency subsystems
Bt REEMELRE ST
201012 A 15 H ARES

(0 MOBI Shenzhen, MOBI Jian and MOBI HK are directly held by the Company.

v BRI B ERRELEERAR
AEERA

EELLERARAR 2011 5%



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ERERMEE

For year ended 3| December 201 |

HE2011 512 A31 BILEE

32. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY 32. RNATHEMRBHE

136

2011 2010
20114 20105
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AR®TT

Non-current assets #/ﬁ@)ﬁ%
Investments in subsidiaries RFREIIRE 261,242 261,242
Amount due from subsidiaries FE U F A RIFRIA 171,176 205,605
432,418 466,847

Current assets REEE
Trade and other receivables Z 5 M E A fE W BR K 14,591 [,107
Bank balances and cash RITEHERE 64,404 41,573
78,995 42,680
Current liabilities nEAaE

Trade and other payables B 5 I H e R 4,042 4,555
Dividend payable JE AR B, 699 735
4,741 5,290
Net current assets TBEEFE 74,254 37,390
Total assets less current liabilities MEERTEAR 506,672 504,237

Capital and reserves PR K
Issued capital BEITRA 6 6
Reserves [ 506,666 504,231
Fquity attributable to owners of the Company AR FIHEAE A (G = 506,672 504,237

MOBI Development Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2011
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